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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), |
am pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year 2020 was an extraordinary year in Chinese history.
Facing the severe and complicated domestic and international
environment, especially the severe impact of the Novel
Coronavirus (COVID-19), all departments in all regions have
put the safety of the people as top priority, on the general
keynote of seeking progress while maintaining stability, and on
coordinating the work of epidemic prevention and control with
economic and social development. Coupled with increased
macro policy countermeasures, significant strategic results
have been achieved in the prevention and control of the
epidemic. The main objectives of economic and social
development have been accomplished and the results
achieved were better than expected. Finally, China achieved
growth of 2.3%, which is well below the 6% or higher growth
rate that has prevailed in recent years, but by far the best
performance among major global economies.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

In 2020, China’s cigarette production increased by 1.26%
year-on-year, representing the highest rate of production
growth in nearly five years, and cigarette sales in China
increased by 0.48% year-on-year, representing the highest
volume growth in nearly three years. In general, it can be seen
that the tobacco industry’s production and sales volumes
continued to grow steadily, and the economic performance of
the tobacco industry will be generally positive with the further
implementation of national policies. On the other hand, the
domestic environmental protection policy has become more
stringent in recent years, the increase in the prices of raw
materials such as paper, the tightening of tobacco control
policies, the supply-side reform of the tobacco industry,
tendering and the continuous efforts of customers to reduce
costs and increase efficiency and restructuring have also put
certain pressure on the Group’s operations. Fierce competition
in the industry remains inevitable and will be further
characterised by price wars, which was particularly evident in
2020. Facing the severe competitive environment in the
industry, the Group has adopted a series of measures,
including strengthening production cost control, improving
production efficiency, enhancing inventory management,
stepping up collection efforts on accounts receivable and
controlling capital costs, to cope with further price reductions
and intensified competition brought about by tenders, as well
as the impact of rising raw material prices.

Tender prices have fallen amidst a continuing trend of cost
reduction and efficiency gains by our subscribers resulting in
lower sales volumes for the Group. The Group’s total revenue
decreased by 10.5% from approximately HK$1,495.8 million in
2019 to approximately HK$1,339.4 million in 2020. As a result
of the above cost reduction and efficiency measures, the gross
profit margin in 2020 only slightly decreased by 3.4% to 19.8%
compared to the same period last year.
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Chairman’s statement

EFRHEEE

During the period under review, Shenzhen Kecai Printing Co.,
Limited (“Kecai”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company established in the People’s Republic of China, has
not successfully bid its tender for 2021 and 2022 orders from
one of its major customers in Sichuan Province. This customer
was one of the Group’s five largest customers in 2020. The
failure to successfully bid for the tender may have an adverse
impact on the overall revenue and profitability of the Group for
the coming years. The Group recognised an impairment loss
on goodwill of Kecai of approximately HK$173.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as its recoverable amount was
less than the carry value. Details of the impairment loss
recognised for goodwill are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
94.9% from approximately HK$175.9 million in 2019 to
approximately HK$8.9 million in 2020, mainly due to the
recognition of impairment of goodwill of HK$176.0 million in
total. Basic earnings per share was approximately HKO.6 cents
(2019: approximately HK11.2 cents).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK10 cents (2019:
HK19.13 cents) per share. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”), the proposed final dividend will be
payable on or about 5 July 2021 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
25 June 2021.

PROSPECTS

In 2020, the tobacco industry adhered to the general keynote
of “seeking progress while maintaining stability” to provide a
strong guarantee for continued growth in 2021. We believe
that the tobacco industry will remain stable in the long term, as
its steady development is of great importance to the country’s
revenue generation. In 2021, the Group will steadfastly
increase its development in the tobacco industry and always
make cigarette packaging the solid foundation of the Group’s
development. In addition to increasing tenders, we will also
actively expand into other packaging markets. The Group will
also continue to reduce the pressure of declining gross profit
through cost reduction and efficiency enhancement and
resource consolidation measures.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

APPRECIATION ESE

On behalf of the Group, | would also like to take this ZARNATE#GKERREETS R OREAE
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all the staff of E28EE TS HRER - BETERER
the Group for their efforts and contributions, and all our &A{EEHEHE o

shareholders and partners for their support.

Chen Xiao Liang R R
Chairman TE
30 March 2021 —E-—F=H=+H
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Management discussion and analysis

EEENm&R DN

REVENUE

The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$1,339.4 million in 2020, representing a decrease of 10.5%
as compared to approximately HK$1,495.8 million in 2019.
The revenue was generated from three business segments: (i)
the printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and
related materials of approximately HK$1,227.7 million (2019:
HK$1,366.7 million), (i) manufacturing of laminated papers of
approximately HK$35.5 million (2019: HK$42.0 million), and (iii)
sales of RFID products of approximately HK$76.2 million
(2019: HK$87.1 million). The revenue from the printing and
manufacturing of cigarette packages and related materials
segment accounted for approximately 91.7% of the total
revenue for 2020 (2019: 91.4%). The decrease in total revenue
is mainly due to decrease in sales volume of cigarette
package, which was partially offset by slight increase in
average selling price resulted from sales of products with
higher profit margin.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit decreased by 23.6% from approximately
HK$347.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$265.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, primarily reflecting a decrease in revenue. As
a result of the cost reduction and efficiency measures
implemented during the year under review, the gross profit
margin only slightly decreased by 3.4% from 23.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to 19.8% for the year ended
31 December 2020.

OTHER INCOME

Other income increased by 40.3% from approximately
HK$33.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$47.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 due to the increase in government grant of
approximately HK$7.5 million and interest income on bank
deposits of approximately HK$2.9 million.
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Management discussion and analysis
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other losses increased by 622.9% from approximately
HK$24.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$173.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 was mainly attributable to the increase in
impairment losses on goodwill by approximately HK$161.0
million to HK$176.0 million of which approximately HK$173.0
million was recognized for Kecai as its recoverable amount
was less than the carry value as at 31 December 2020.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The selling and distribution expenses decreased by 27.7%
from approximately HK$57.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$41.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 which was primarily attributable to
less marketing expenses having been spent on promoting
services to the cigarette packages customers during the year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENSES

The administrative expenses and other expenses remained
relatively stable in 2019 and 2020, only slightly increased by
1.8% from approximately HK$86.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately HK$88.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs remained stable at approximately HK$20.0
million in 2019 and 2020.
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SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

The share of profits of associates increased by 42.0% from
approximately HK$41.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$59.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 due to improvement in profitability
of the Group’s major associate namely Changde Goldroc
Rotogravure Printing Co. (“Changde Goldroc”). Changde
Goldroc is principally engaged in the provision of cigarette
printing package services. The Group beneficially owns
RMB50,546,120 of its registered capital, representing 31% of
the total registered capital of RMB163,052,000. The profit of
Changde Goldroc increased by 31.9% from approximately
HK$145.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$192.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such increase was primarily attributable to (i)
the improvement of the product mix; (ii) the strengthening of
the production cost control and improved production
efficiency; and (i) the reduction or exemption in corporate
social insurance premiums charged by local government in
response to the impact of the epidemic. The fair value of
Changde Goldroc as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$1,425.3 million (2019: approximately HK$1,338.5 million).
The carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Changde
Goldroc was approximately HK$450.4 million as at 31
December 2020 (2019: approximately HK$422.6 million), i.e
more than 5% of the Group’s total assets of HK$3,588.9
million as at 31 December 2020. During the year under review,
the Group received dividend of approximately HK$58.5 million
(2019: HK$73.2 million) from Changde Goldroc. The Group
holds the investment in Changde Goldroc for stable earnings
and dividend income in view of its stable business with the
local customers.

TAXATION

The effective tax rate of the Group increased from 24.0% in
2019 to 80.5% in 2020. Such increase was primarily due to
the recognition of the impairment losses on goodwill, which is
not deductible for tax purpose.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing, the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company decreased by 94.9% from
approximately HK$175.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$8.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Management discussion and analysis

EEEFWED
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OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The following table sets forth other performance indicators of
the Group as at the dates or for the years indicated:

Ht &M ER
TREHAEERFR BB F D EME
MIEIR

As at or for the year ended
31 December

R+=—A=+—HB=H
BEZHILEE

2020 2019

—E-EF —hF

Current Ratio (Note 1) mEh & (fsE1) 1.5 times 1.8 times
1.5F 1.81%

Quick Ratio (Note 2) mEp L& (fisE2) 1.4 times 1.6 times
1.415 1.615

Return on equity (Note 3) reNEEES( ) 0.3% 6.2%
Return on total assets (Note 4) EEELRER (MsE4) 0.2% 4.6%

Notes:

1)

Current ratio is calculated based on total current assets of the Group
divided by total current liabilities of the Group as at the end of the
respective year.

Quick ratio is calculated based on total current assets of the Group less
inventories of the Group divided by total current liabilities of the Group
as at the end of the respective year.

Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year by the arithmetic mean of the opening and
closing balance of total equity attributable to owners of the Company.

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the year by the arithmetic mean of the
opening and closing balance of total assets of the Group.

Current ratio and quick ratio

The Group’s current ratio and quick ratio as at 31 December
2020 remained relatively stable at 1.5 times (2019: 1.8 times)
and 1.4 times (2019: 1.6 times), respectively.

Return on equity and return on total assets

The Group’s return on equity decreased from 6.2% in 2019 to
0.3% in 2020 and the Group’s return on total assets
decreased from 4.6% in 2019 to 0.2% in 2020, which was
primarily due to the decrease in the profit attributable to
owners of the Company for 2020 as compared to that of
2019.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s financial position remains solid and the Group
possessed sufficient cash to meet its commitments and
working capital requirements. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had net current assets of approximately HK$392.2
million (2019: approximately HK$514.5 million) of which cash
and cash equivalents were approximately HK$315.4 million
(2019: approximately HK$201.2 million) and were denominated
in RMB, US$ and HK$ as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of approximately HK$411.2 million (2019:
approximately HK$256.5 million) which shall be repaid within 1
year. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 was 14.8%
(2019: 8.8%), which is calculated by dividing the total bank
borrowings by the total equity. No financial instruments were
used for hedging purposes, nor were there any foreign
currency net investments hedged by current borrowings and/
or other hedging instruments during the year.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, assets with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$14.5 million (31 December 2019: HK$9.5
million) were pledged to banks in respect of bank borrowings
granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2020.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitment
amounted to approximately HK$76.4 million (31 December
2019: approximately HK$95.5 million) in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated financial statements.
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Management discussion and analysis

SR B

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2020. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its existing customers from time to time. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIALS INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save for Changde Goldroc, the particulars of which are
disclosed in the above section headed “Share of profits of
associates”, there were no significant investments held, no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020. Save as disclosed in this report, there was
no plan authorised by the Board for other material investments
or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,150 employees
(2019: 1,501). The total remuneration cost incurred by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$172.3 million (2019: approximately
HK$179.8 million). The Group’s remuneration packages are
generally structured with reference to market terms and
individual merits. The Group participates in a defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ base salaries. The Group also made
contributions to provident funds, elderly insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and work-related injury
insurance in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 and the future development of the Group’s
business is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 5 to 8 of this annual report. Financial and
business performance analysis is disclosed in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to
14. The principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s
results and business can be found in notes 4, 38 to 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The PRC cigarette industry is closely monitored and controlled
by the PRC government and our customers are concentrated
on a limited number of state-owned cigarette manufacturers.
The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise shareholders, regulators,
customers, employees, local communities and business
partners etc. and we have maintained good and strong
business relationship with our customers through joint venture
and other co-operations. During the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this annual report, we have
complied with all the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the
PRC that have a significant impact on the Group. Further
details about the environmental and social responsibility will be
published in separate report to be uploaded on the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 58 to 59. The Board recommended the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK10
cents (2019: HK19.13 cents) per share. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the AGM, the proposed final
dividend will be payable on or about 5 July 2021 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 25 June 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 7
June 2021 to 11 June 2021 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer of shares of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificate(s) and appropriate transfer form(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2021.

For determining the entitlement to receive the proposed final
dividend (subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
AGM), the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 22 June 2021 to 25 June 2021 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the proposed
final dividend, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate
transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 June
2021.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 55.6% of the Group’s
turnover and sales to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 24.5% of the Group’s total revenue. During the
year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 24.2% of the
Group’s total purchases, and the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 9.9% of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interests in any of the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$2,224.9 million.
Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Details of the
movements in reserves of the Group and the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to its shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
shares.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the last
five financial years and of its consolidated assets and liabilities
as at the end of the last five financial years is set out on pages
231 to 232.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 March 2009, the shareholders of the Company had
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was expired on 3 March 2019.

No option under the Share Option Scheme has been granted
by the Board and there was no outstanding option.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the date of this
report are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$2.9 million (2019: Nil).
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a provident fund scheme as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme was a defined contribution scheme and the
assets of the MPF Scheme were managed by a trustee.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64
and with at least 60 days of service under the employment of
the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions were made by the
Group at 5% based on the staff’s relevant income. The
maximum relevant income for contribution purpose is
HK$30,000 per month. Staff members were entitled to 100%
of the Group’s contributions together with accrued returns
irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefits were required by law to be preserved until the
retirement age of 65. No forfeited contributions are available to
offset future employers’ contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries.
The only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the
central pension scheme are to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

The Group’s cost for the schemes charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$7.7 million (2019: HK$15.0 million).
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Report of the directors
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (Chairman)
(resigned on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Chen Xiao Liang
(re-designated as Chairman on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Qin Song (Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chen Huapei (resigned on 31 March 2020)

Mr. Huang Wanru (appointed on 31 March 2020)

Ms. Zheng Jinghui (appointed on 31 March 2020)

Non-Executive Director:
Ms. Li Li

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy

Mr. Lui Tin Nang

Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon

According to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company but shall then be eligible for re-election.
According to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Details of the Directors subject to rotation and re-election are
contained in the circular despatched together with this annual
report.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), the Board currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of the
Board. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed by annual confirmation that he has complied
with the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all three
independent non-executive Directors are independent under
these independence criteria and are capable to effectively
exercise independent judgement.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 45 to 50.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of two years commencing
from 31 March 2020, and will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party. Mr. Qin Song has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 30 March 2018 and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party. Each of Mr. Huang Wanru and Ms.
Zheng Jinghui has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 31 March
2020, which may be terminated by serving 3 months’ notice in
advance by either party. Ms. Li Li has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 22 July 2018, and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party. Each of Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr.
Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon has renewed their
appointment for a fixed term of three years commencing from
30 March 2021.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION PURSUANT
TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE HONG KONG
LISTING RULES

Following the resignation of Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David, the
former chairman of the Board, Mr. Chen Xiao Liang, an
executive Director, has been re-designated as the chairman of
the Board with effect from 31 March 2020.

On 2 November 2020, Mr. Lui Tin Nang, an independent non-
executive Director, was reprimanded by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for
failure to comply with the Accountant’s Report Rules (Cap.
159A) and HKICPA'’s Practice Note 840 (Revised) Reporting
on Solicitors’ Accounts under the Solicitors’ Accounts Rules
and the Accountant’s Report Rules in relation to the issuance
of an accountant’s report for a solicitor’'s firm by him. Mr. Lui
Tin Nang was ordered to pay an administrative penalty of
HK$25,000 and the HKICPA'’s costs of HK$15,000.

Save for the information disclosed above, there is no other
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the related party transactions entered into during the
year were disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements in which purchase of printing and packing
machineries was continuing connected transaction within the
meaning of the Listing Rules, details of which are disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below. Save as the transactions
aforementioned, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or in which a Director, an
entity connected with a Director or the controlling shareholder
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year, and there was no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Group by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained liability
insurance for Directors and officers throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the following Directors or the chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or
(i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:

EERFTETHRAEREQAFTRH
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The Company VNN
Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Director Capacity shares held Position share capital
Frise,/ HERITRE
EEpE 54 HERGEE #R N d
Mr. Qin Song Beneficial owner 15,321,062 Long 0.98%
/e EREEA )
Mr. Huang Wanru Beneficial owner 1,735,204 Long 0.11%
EEMEE EnEAA )
Ms. LiLi Interest of controlled corporation 250,551,964 Long 15.98%
FHRIR LT R EE RS )
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed to have, interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2

TERROERR HKE

BARAEEREBARABHM K2
—2E+= A= -8 UFALQEEA
AFMEELEETRAR) AEA AR
SRR (D P I SR BB RIS R
I 1B XV BB 2 R 35 X ARAR
ABBOBSIAR

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Position capital
FrisRRen,/ HEBRITRAE
RREH g4 HEROHBE #®=B BABEIE
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David Interest of controlled 901,456,892 Long 57.50%
corporation
ERAxLE Rt EEE S 1)
Profitcharm Limited Beneficial owner 274,325,278 Long 17.50%
BlHARRA ERBEBA )
Sinorise International Limited Beneficial owner 627,131,614 Long 40.00%
RERRAR AR ERBEBA 15}
Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled 250,651,964 Long 15.98%
corporation
RERKHUBREEROBRDF REHEEER 5o}
Masterwork Machinery (H.K.) Limited Beneficial owner 250,551,964 Long 15.98%
&k (%) BRAR ERBBA 5o}
Tianjin Dehou Investment Interest of controlled 103,555,231 Long 6.60%
Management Partnership corporation
(Limited Partnership)
Tianjin Dehou Investment ZEHEE RS e
Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
2020F 3R EEHERBIRARAA
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Transactions with Masterwork Group

On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into a master
sale and purchase agreement (the “Master Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Masterwork Group Co., Ltd (“Masterwork
Group”), pursuant to which the Group will () purchase post-
press and packaging machineries from Masterwork Group or
its subsidiaries and/or (i) sell old machineries, purchased from
Masterwork Group or otherwise, to Masterwork Group or its
subsidiaries and related services from time to time to/for a
term commencing on 1 January 2018 and expiring on 31
December 2020. The annual caps in relation to the purchase
of post-press and packaging machineries by the Company for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2020 are RMB50
million, RMB50 million and RMB50 million respectively. The
annual caps in relation to the sale of old machineries,
purchased from Masterwork Group or otherwise, to
Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries and related services for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2020 are RMB10
million, RMB10 million and RMB10 million respectively.

There is no minimum sale and purchase amount under the
Master Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Group is not
contractually bound to (i) purchase post-press and packaging
machineries from Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries and/or
(i) sell old machineries, purchased from Masterwork Group or
otherwise, to Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries. The Group
is entitled to source such machineries from other suppliers or
dispose such old machineries to other purchasers. The post-
press and packaging machineries and related services to be
supplied by Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries to the Group
will be in accordance with the specifications provided by the
Group on a case by case basis. The old machineries to be
sold by the Group will be subject to acceptance by
Masterwork Group depending on the type, condition and price
of the old machineries to be decided on a case by case basis.
The exact quantity, specifications and price of the post-press
and packaging machineries and the old machineries,
settlement terms and date of delivery will be set out in the sale
and purchase orders to be issued by the Group to Masterwork
Group.
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The actual purchase amount incurred under the Master Sale
and Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately HK$11.9 million. There was no sale
of old machinery to Masterwork Group during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Masterwork Group, being a substantial shareholder of the
Company interested in 15.98% of the issued share capital of
the Company, is a connected person under the Listing Rules
and the transactions contemplated under the Master Sale and
Purchase Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Master Sale and Purchase Agreement
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22
December 2017.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save for the “Purchase of printing and packing machineries”
during the year as shown in note 45(a) to the consolidated
financial statements which constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, all other related party transactions as shown in note 45
are continuing connected transactions exempted from
announcement, reporting, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and
(¢) in accordance with the Master Sale and Purchase

Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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In addition, the Company has engaged its auditor to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements. Other than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued unqualified letter
containing the conclusion in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out above which is in compliance
with the Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

EQUITY FUND RAISING

There was no equity fund raising by the Company during the
year, nor were there any proceeds brought forward from any
issue of equity securities made in previous financial years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
section set out on pages 30 to 44.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2020, there were revolving loan facilities
available to the Group from several banks in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$470 million. Under the terms of these
facilities (the availability of which are generally subject to banks’
periodic review), the Company has undertaken, among other
matters, that Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David shall maintain at least
50% beneficial shareholding interest in or remain as the single
largest shareholder of the Company at all times during the life
of the above banking facilities (the “Undertaking”). The
breach of such Undertaking may result in the loan becoming
immediately due and repayable.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited

Chen Xiao Liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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OVERVIEW

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as
to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
complied in general with the Code, except code provision
A.6.7 of the Code as Ms. Li Li (the non-executive Director) was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 5 June 2020 due to other business engagement.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions by Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring the performance of the senior
management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised eight
Directors, including four executive Directors namely Mr. Chen
Xiao Liang, Mr. Qin Song, Mr. Huang Wanru and Ms. Zheng
Jinghui, one non-executive Director namely Ms. Li Li, and
three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lam
Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon. There is no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationship between any of the Directors. The
names and biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section entitled “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. Pursuant to
paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules, each of
the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed by
annual confirmation that he has complied with the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Directors consider that all three independent non-
executive Directors are independent under these
independence criteria and are capable to effectively exercise
independent judgement. Amongst the three independent non-
executive Directors, both Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy and Mr.
Lui Tin Nang have the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). Further
details of these committees are set out below.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Four Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2020. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened if
necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of
Board meeting was sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior
to a regular board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given
to the Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

All relevant materials were sent to all the Directors relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. All the Directors
have been provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. Details of individual attendance of the
Directors in Board meetings are set out in the table on page
39 of this annual report.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with the Company for a specific
term of two or three years. All of their appointments are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

All of the independent non-executive Directors and the non-
executive Director were appointed for a term of three years,
and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Nomination Policy

The responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors is delegated to the Nomination
Committee but the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors of the Company rests with the entire
Board. In evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship, among other things, the following criteria will be
considered:

e  Character and integrity.

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under
the board diversity policy that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy.

° Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

° Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

° Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

° Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or the
Board Committee(s).

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board will evaluate the
candidates based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidates are qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee will also consider recommendations for
candidates made by shareholders of the Company.
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Regular reviews will be conducted by the Nomination
Committee on the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the policy on nomination of Directors of the
Company and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
will make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business
needs.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Chen Xiao Liang was the
Chairman who provided leadership to the Board but he was
not involved in the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. Mr. Qin Song was the Vice-Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company during the year and his role
was to oversee the overall management of the Group.

Training for Directors

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The
Company also provides Directors with monthly updates on the
performance, position and prospects of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training
record in order to assist the Directors to record the training
undergone by each of them.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules and other
corporate governance requirements with written materials.
Individual Director had also attended seminars and/or
conferences or workshops or forums relevant to his profession
and duties as directors. All Directors have provided the
Company with their respective training records in compliance
with Code A.6.5 of the Code.
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Below is a summary of the training the directors had received FWK @ EFEX

during the year:

Name of Directors

Bl BRDT

Type of trainings

EEnE EINER
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (Chairman) (resigned on 31 March 2020) B
ZERALXE(FE)(R_ZE_TF=A=1+—HET) B
Mr. Chen Xiao Liang (re-designated as Chairman on 31 March 2020) A&B
RRREE(R_TE_TF=A=+—"HRAEEE) A&B
Mr. Qin Song (Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) A&B
SRk (Bl ERHRITHAAER) A&B
Mr. Chen Huapei (resigned on 31 March 2020) A&B
REREE(R_E_TF=A=+—HEE) A&B
Mr. Huang Wanru (appointed on 31 March 2020) A&B
BENEE(R_ZE_TF=A=+—"HEZT) A&B
Ms. Zheng Jinghui (appointed on 31 March 2020) A&B
BHB2LT(R_TTF=A=1T—"HEZE) A&B
Ms. Li Li A&B
FHIL L A&B
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy A&B
MBI/ T4 A&B
Mr. Lui Tin Nang A&B
PN A&B
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon B
Ep e B
A:  Attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums A BB GRS TR WiE
B:  Reading journals/updates/articles/materials B:  BEFM EEER S XE MK
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chung Tat Hung has tendered his resignation as the
company secretary with effect from 1 September 2020.
Following the resignation of Mr. Chung, the Board has decided
to appoint Mr. Chan Chung Kik Lewis as the company
secretary with effect from 1 September 2020. Mr. Chan is a
full time staff of the Group and is responsible for ensuring and
advising the Board on compliance of all policies and
procedures in connection with the applicable rules and
regulations.

The biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out under the
section headed “Profile of directors and senior management”.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, each of Mr. Chung
and Mr. Chan received not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update their knowledge and skills.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee which consists
of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon, and one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li, and
Mr. Lui Tin Nang is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other
matters, to review and monitor the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management of the Group, and to
report to the Board on matters relating to the corporate
governance as stated in the Code. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Audit Committee held three meetings to
review, among others, the financial results, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of the Company's
internal audit function, appointment and scope of work of
external auditors. The Board has not taken a different view
from that of the Audit Committee regarding the selections,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee which
consists of five members (including the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy,
Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon, one non-
executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li and Mr. Chen Huapei, an
executive Director whose role has been replaced by Mr. Huang
Wanru with effect from 31 March 2020) and Mr. Lam Ying
Hung, Andy is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are,
among other matters, to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of executive Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on the merit, qualifications and competence of the individuals.
The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting and reviewed the remuneration
policy, assessed performance of executive Directors and
approved the terms of the executive Directors' service
contracts and the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The remuneration of directors and senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration bands

FMEES

ARRIERUFMNEES - HMEESHE
ZRE(BRE=R2BERNTES (AIME
BELE  BREEERBYXREE)  —F
FRTEF(AFHNLL) RMITERRE
EERE(B-Z-TF=_A=1t—HEH=R
BMEARR)) MR - MARSE ST 25 B
ZEENIF FHZESGNTIEBRER
(EFBR)RATEFRSREEABNF
B AW ERZEFMBERR L LA REE
RENER  REFSELHEESR -

AEEREBNHIMBER I ENEANE -
BREREEN - EFOHFHN I EFHEZESE
ZRARNAMKEES  AARBARAEL
WS BIREEHER -

HE-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE %
MEE S GRIT RS MEEFTMNBCR -
FHEMITESE RS - WHERTESRES
W FEAREERRREREABNETMF
@ °

FNEZ B e mBEEE D NALRE MR
HAB UL ER

HE—_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HIFEE=SE
SEREENEFAR T ¢

Number of persons

48 B AE
Up to HK$1,000,000 12
&% 3% 1,000,000 & 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2
1,000,001 7T 2 2,000,000 & 7T

Above HK$2,000,001 NIL

2,000,001 &ITLA &

A
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee which
consists of five members (including the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy,
Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon, one non-
executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li and Mr. Qin Song, an
executive Director) and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are, among other matters, to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis, to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, and to make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. According to the board diversity policy adopted by
the Nomination Committee, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service etc. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service etc. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and discussed and reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Attendance of meetings ERLEEXRE

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings, Board W-_Z-_ZFE  KEZENEFSSH -
Committees meetings and annual general meeting of the EZEe@exLRRAFASHEFERE R
Company for the year 2020 is set out below: T

Attendance out of number of meetings

HHERBENERERY
Annual
general
Audit Remuneration Nomination meeting
Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee (Note 1)
BRREFAS
ESptE B8 ENZEE FHzEe REZES GES)
Executive Directors HITEE
Cai Xiao Ming, David BB (1)
(Chairman) (resigned on (M=Z-%F
31 March 2020) =A=1+—H
BiT) 0/ - - - -
Chen Xiao Liang BRIRR
(re-designated as (R=Z2=%F
Chairman on 31 March =A=1t—H
2020) BALRE) 4/4 - - - /1
Qin Song 574N 4/4 - - 11 11
Chen Huapei (resigned on R
31 March 2020) (RZZ=%%
=ZA=1+-H
BHT) 1/1 - 1/1 - -
Mr. Huang Wanru (appointed & & 14 4
on 31 March 2020) (R-Z_Z%
=ZA=1+—-H
BZf) 3/3 - - - 11
Ms. Zheng Jinghui (appointed Z&#Z %+
on 31 March 2020) (R=Z=%F
=ZA=+—-AH
BZE) 33 - - - /1
Non-Executive Director HHITEE
LiLi FH 3/4 3/3 1/1 1A 01
Independent Non-Executive BV HEHTEE
Directors
Lam Ying Hung, Andy MEE 4/4 3/3 11 11 11
Lui Tin Nang EPN:I2 4/4 3/3 11 11 11
Siu Man Ho, Simon EE 4/4 3/3 11 11 11
Note: M
1. The annual general meeting was held on 5 June 2020. 1. BEREAGR - E—TE XA HART -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditor’s acknowledgement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group for each financial year,
which should give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group and of the results and cash flow
for that year in compliance with relevant laws and applicable
accounting standards.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, the Directors have adopted appropriate and
consistent accounting policies and made prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimations.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been prepared on a going-concern basis. The
responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial
statements of the Group prepared by the Board and to report
their opinion to the Shareholders. A statement by the auditor
about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration
paid/payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of audit
and non-audit services is summarised as follows:

FAEREX

EERUBTMNRER
EREHRLRUSEEEHBFEHNBER
KROBM - UHBRREEER R FHRBRA
RAIRAEBRZFENEHRR  EHER
Rend WETHEREDRER g E
8l -

ERUBE-T-TE+-A=+— BT
EHIERER  EEDIRMEE R
TR - e B R A T A 4B R g
i

BE_ZT_ZHE+_A=+—HILFENY
BRRIIRITELEEEREL - SN BED
MEEAREFTERVESTSARRENZ
EXKEEAMBRRBEBIER XA
BREREBRELER o AN E AR E EPTE
REOERAFNBIRBERENA -

o B0 B 7 A
BE_T_ZF+_A=+—HILFE
B NOFEZIRIERIES o BAELRT S&TED
TEN/ENOMESimT

HK$°000

FTEx

Statutory audit services VA TE B 1% AR 7S 2,327

Non-audit services: EEZ R

Agreed-upon procedures on interim results AP ERENTIER T 500
Agreed-upon procedures on continuing MIFEFERZIHNITHERF

connected transactions 50

Total BET 2,877
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The Group’s internal control system is designed
to safeguard assets against misappropriation and unauthorized
disposition and to manage operational risks. These systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Internal control and risk management
systems are reviewed annually to ensure its continuous
effectiveness. The Group has in place a risk management
framework which has the following five components: risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment, reporting and
monitoring.

A review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control for the year covering all key controls, including financial,
operational and compliance and risk management controls, is
conducted by rotation and performed annually. The
examination consisted of enquiry, discussion and validation
through observation and inspection. The result of the review
has been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board and
areas of improvement, if any, have been identified and
appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the
risks. The Company’s internal audit department independently
reviews the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, in the key activities of the Company’s business and
submits a report at least once a year to the Board for its review
and monitors the effectiveness of the system of internal control
and risk management of the Group.

For the year of 2020, no significant control failings,
weaknesses, risk or critical internal control issues have been
identified. Based on the reports from the Group’s internal audit
department, the Audit Committee and the Board consider the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal controls as set out
in the CG Code.
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The Company has procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group
strictly prohibits unauthorised use of inside information. The
Group strives to identify inside information and any information
which may potentially constitute inside information at the
earliest opportunity. Such information is then assessed and
handed to the Board for decision on the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and the SFO will be
disclosed in accordance with all applicable requirements in
due course. Inside information would be kept strictly
confidential until such disclosure.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
The constitutional documents of the Company are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value. There is no pre-determined dividend payout
ratio and the declaration and distribution of dividends shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board taking into
account, among others, the financial results, cashflow
situation, future operations and earnings, capital requirements
and expenditure plans and any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant. The Company may declare and pay
dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. The declaration and distribution
of dividends shall also be subject to the articles of association
of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations. The
Board will review the policy from time to time and make
relevant amendments as necessary.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company aims to maintain regular, effective and fair
communication with shareholders and is committed to
conveying important and relevant information to shareholders
on a timely basis. In compliance with the Listing Rules, at least
20 clear business days’ notice will be given to the shareholders
for annual general meeting and at least 10 clear business
days’ notice will be given for all other meetings. All general
meetings of the Company have been conducted by way of poll
and detailed procedures for conducting a poll were explained
at the commencement of the meeting. Results on all general
meetings will be published by way of an announcement
immediately following the relevant general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with Article 58 of the articles of association of
the Company, one or more shareholders of the Company
holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionists by the Company.
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If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to be elected as
a Director, the following documents must be validly served to
the Company’s principal place of business at Room 1201A,
12/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong: (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at
the general meeting; and (ii) a notice executed by the
nominated candidate of his/her willingness to be appointed
together with his/her information as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, within the period
commencing on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and ending on the
date falling seven days after the dispatch of the said notice of
the general meeting.

Any Shareholder may direct their enquires and proposal either
by mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Room
1201A 12/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, by fax at (852) 3915 7800 or by email at
enquiry@brilliantcircle.com.

Shareholders should direct any questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESkEREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang (B R ), aged 62, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 12 March 2019 and was
re-designated as Chairman with effect from 31 March 2020.
He has over 20 years of extensive experience in the property
investment and development industry. He was the Chairman
of Merryearn (Holdings) Limited (B /& EREE AR A 7]) from
1985 to 1995. He has been the Chairman of a number of
corporations in mainland China, namely, Shenzhen Guangyin
Building Industry Co., Limited* (&Y ERXEEEBR R 7))
since 1995; Shenzhen Hongta Industry Co., Limited* (E&3II4T
BB ZEAMR A A]) since November 2002 (in which he has also
been acting as a general manager); Shenzhen Hongding Asset
Management Co., Limited* (RIITA R EEEEBER A R])
since February 2010; and Shenzhen Hongding Property
Development Co., Limited* (&I 4L R FEHERZE B R AR])
since June 2010.

Mr. QIN Song (#k#2), aged 48, is an executive Director, the
Vice Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Qin joined the
Group in May 2002, and worked, among other positions, as
the Office Administrator of the Group and General Manager of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Since September 2005,
Mr. Qin serves as the Deputy Director of the market committee
of the Company and since February 2006, a Vice President of
the Company. From May 2010 to October 2011, he also
served as the General Manager of Bengbu Jinhuangshan
Rotogravure Printing Company Limited in addition to his then
existing duties. Mr. Qin holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics and Management Administration and an MBA from
Peking University.
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Mr. Huang Wanru (ZE ), aged 52, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 31 March 2020. He was
appointed as a vice president of the Group in October 2011
and resumed the same position in March 2020 when he
rejoined the Group after brief departure from the Group in June
2018 for other business engagements. With years of extensive
working experience in the finance field, Mr. Huang has been
responsible for the financial and management information
system of the Group. Since he joined the Group in May 1998,
he has been serving in various subsidiary companies of the
Group in various roles such as cost accounting, finance
manager and finance controller. Since March 2008, he has
been appointed as the financial controller of the Group.

Ms. Zheng Jinghui (&%), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 31 March 2020. She has
been appointed as a vice president of the Group since March
2016. She is responsible for the management of the human
resources and office administration of the Group. Ms. Zheng
graduated from Beihang University specializing in computer
application and Zhejiang University specializing in human
resources management. She joined the Group in 2000 and
has since served in various roles such as information
technology manager, operations manager, human resources
manager, assistant to the chief executive officer and vice
president of the Group.
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ESkEREEERE

Non-Executive Director

Ms. LI Li (Z2%]), aged 49, was appointed as an non-executive
Director on 22 July 2015. Ms. Li is a Chairman of the board of
directors of Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. (K ERZRI £ H
M1 B BR A Al) (“Masterwork” together with its subsidiaries,
the “Masterwork Group”), a company whose issued shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 300195).
She is also an executive director of certain subsidiaries of the
Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Ming Xuan Investment
Limited Company* (K& % #F 1% & A R 2 7). She has been
appointed as a member of the supervisory board of
Heidelberger Druckmaschinen AG, a company listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange, since 25 July 2019. Ms. Li is
qualified as a senior economist in the People’s Republic of
China. She has extensive management experience in the
printing and packaging companies.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy (#M38§), aged 56, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009.
Mr. Lam is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has over 25 years of
experience in accounting, banking and finance sectors. Mr.
Lam is the Managing Consultant of Lontreprise Consulting
Limited. Mr. Lam is an associate member of various
professional organisations, namely The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Lam is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and
Synertone Communication Corporation and Weiye Holdings
Limited, all of them are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam received his Master of
Professional Accounting and Master of Science in
E-commerce for Executives both from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

*

The English names are not official names and are provided for
identification purpose only
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EENSNEEERERE

Mr. LUI Tin Nang (& X §£), aged 63 was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009. Mr. Lui
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lui has a Bachelor degree in Science from
the University of Leeds, a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bradford in United
Kingdom and a Postgraduate Diploma in insolvency from
HKICPA. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA (Practicing),
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. He is also a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountant, Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in Australia and the Certified Tax
Adviser. He has years of experience in accounting, auditing,
taxation, corporate finance and business advisory.

Mr. SIU Man Ho, Simon (# X %), aged 47, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009.
Mr. Siu is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Siu is a practising solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1996 and is a
partner of a Hong Kong law firm, namely Sit, Fung, Kwong &
Shum Solicitors. Mr. Siu is also a China Appointed Attesting
Officer appointed by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC. His
areas of practice include corporate finance, capital markets,
securities, mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and general
commercial matters. Mr. Siu is also an independent non-
executive director of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
Limited (stock code 897), Shuang Yun Holdings Limited (stock
code 1706) and HKE Holdings Limited (stock code 1726), all
of which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Moreover, he was appointed as the independent
non-executive director of Weiye Holdings Limited (stock code
1570) in March 2016 and resigned from the position in
December 2018. He also actively participates in charitable and
social services in Hong Kong. He was previously appointed as
the director of Hong Kong Pok Oi Hospital. He is acting as the
legal adviser for United Hearts Youth Foundation and VQ
Foundation as well as the school manager of The Association
of Directors and Former Directors of Pok Oi Hospital Ltd.
Leung Sing Tak College. He is also a member of the
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Yangjiang City of Guangdong Province, the
PRC.

*

The English name is not an official name and is provided for
identification purpose only
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ESkEREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIANG Xiang Yu (3&%£H0), aged 65, is a Vice President of
the Group and the General Manager of Bengbu Jinhuangshan
Rotogravure Printing Co., Limited. He joined the Group in
1999 and has over 20 years of experience in the cigarette
package industry.

Mr. YAN Feng (& £), aged 63, is a Vice President of the
Group since March 2016 responsible for the Group
infrastructure advancement, equipment management and
investment, policy research and technology management. Mr.
Yan joined the Group in 2000 and has more than 20 years of
experience in the cigarette package industry and he also has
experience in printing of books services.

Ms. Al Ping (X ) aged 46, joined the Group in July 2001
and has been appointed as a Vice President of the Group
since June 2018. With extensive experience in market
development and business management, Ms. Ai Ping is
responsible for the expansion of some of the Group’s business
markets and concurrently serves as the general manager of
the subsidiary Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Color Package Co., Ltd.
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ESREREEERE

Mr. Chen Huapei (PR Z 3Z), aged 46, has been appointed as a
vice president of the Group since October 2018. With
extensive experience in financial audit management, Mr. Chen
is responsible for managing the financial and auditing systems
of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in October 1997 and
has served in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has served
as the chief cost accountant at the Group’s Head Office,
finance manager of Bengbu Jinhuangshan Rotogravure
Printing Co., Limited, finance director of Shenzhen Kecai
Printing Co., Limited, deputy general manager of Changde
Goldroc Printing Co., Limited and assistant to Group’s CEO.
Mr. Chen graduated from Yangzhou University with a major in
economic information management and he is currently
pursuing a master’s degree at Xian University of Technology.
Mr. Chen has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 9 November 2018 and resigned as executive
Director on 31 March 2020 to assume other roles within the
Group.

Mr. Chan Chung Kik Lewis (PBR{H5), aged 48, is the Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr.
Chan joined the Group in August 2020. He has more than 20
years of experience in auditing, accounting and corporate
finance. He obtained a bachelor degree of commerce in
accounting from the University of Canberra in Australia in
September 1997. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA Australia.
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

Deloitte

To the Members of Brilliant Circle Holdings International
Limited
EBREZERERERLT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 58 to 230, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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B XA E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BERESER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FIREAFTELSBEBEEEMNEELEY - R4
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HAEIMGAMBRENBIARAEENS
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 1B o ZEHIE AN EEE TGS MR
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HRHEERRERIE EET@UZEEE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 12 #tEBHNER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEENPHNEELE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB R ER

We identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill as a key audit matter due to significant
judgements and estimations exercised by the
Group’s management in impairment assessment.
EEFNHERENEABERETFE RA
" BEEERERETRENGRAELERSY
i Ko (A5t -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
goodwill assessment included:

BEEREEREMNEETNEF R

° Discussing with the Group’s management on
their approach to impairment assessment;
e H BEEEEEEMNWMENENITE:

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the impairment
models and checking their mathematical
accuracy;

o FEAEERRTAERREEH ERTRR

° Evaluating the independent qualified professional
valuer’'s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

e FMEBUSAEREXRMGEMNBENE - EOIK
FEM

o Reviewing the valuation report provided by the
independent valuer on the discount rate adopted
in the discounted cash flow forecast model and
evaluating its reasonableness;

e MITRBEEREBABRKXARAITIREENE
BEMREHNEERS  TAHERSSIE
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BB E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

REETER

BRFISHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEESPNEELE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (continued)

BER AR (F)

The Group’s goodwill amounted to HK$885,408,000
(net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$284,226,000) as at 31 December 2020 relating
to the acquisition of printing businesses in 2009,
2012 and 2018 and the acquisition of sales of radio
frequency products businesses in 2017 which are
subject to impairment assessment in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36
“Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36”) issued by the
HKICPA. As detailed in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, in determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use of
the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. Significant judgements, estimations
and assumptions were required by management of
the Group in assessing the recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units. The value in use of the cash-
generating units is determined based on the
discounted cash flow forecast model which requires
estimation on certain assumptions, including the
discount rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin
and sales growth rate.
RZZEZZF+-_A=+—H  EKERR=ZT
ZhE  ZT—ZFR-ZF-NFREERIZEBE X
R-E—+tFUBHAERHEERHTELDE
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Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs adopted in the
discounted cash flow forecast model including
the terminal growth rate, gross margin and sales
growth rate by comparing the management’s
expectations for the market development to
relevant industry growth forecasts and past
performance, as appropriate; and
FRHNREREFETM S ERUMEBITELER
TR FBERR(REZEBRAME) OHIE - &F
BRHAReREFAEAMRANEIERIZNK
BAMIE (BRKEEERE - EMENHERRK
K)RBEE &

Reviewing the sensitivity analyses performed by
the management to evaluate the potential
impacts on the recoverable amount and
impairment.

EHHREREETHNBRESN - ARG A
WElEREMRENBELE -
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B2 AR

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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B2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ZEMMBRZGES MR ARIE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL WEE &)

STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of e
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content e
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance ZZEAIEER(EPEIE) B2
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing BTN ERETEIRER  ZEY
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any IR E1EEZEEEHBIZ T 358 A 2P ES 126
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during ~ fE{a] 88 KRk o

our audit.
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Ka Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2021

BB ERGS M BRRARE
HEE )

BEENMMREEELER  HHEFETA
BRBMEMAREREFR  LHRKRERR
ARERAERSEFEEFE I ENAR
BEREMEE - AR RHERREE M REETT
Bk AR g e (WEA)

REAEERBNFET  BEEETHAH
B ERRNETERERNERA
MK AR EFH - EEERBEIRET
Wl EER - RIFERIOER T AR
BEZEEE  IERKFERNERT -
EEERCEESERESTRABRERENNE
EERBHEEN QRN - MIEFREN
EERSEPEEZFR -

HEARBI ZBMBRENETHEEABAZ

-

EE e BAER S FETHIT
HEDEAD
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income

ek HaEEREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

2020 2019
—EBEF —E-NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
ibE=d FHET FHT
Revenue Wz 5 1,339,439 1,495,833
Cost of sales H & AR (1,073,661) (1,148,171)
Gross profit S 265,778 347,662
Other income H A A 7 46,939 33,460
Other gains and losses Halhzs R EE 8 (173,846) (24,049)
Impairment losses on financial TREERGNEERE
assets and contract assets, B e (FkREE)
net of reversal 9 (2,267) (1,960)
Selling and distribution expenses  $5& K7 tHFA X (41,220) (57,011)
Administrative expenses TTBRSZ (83,531) (83,458)
Other expenses HEaEx (4,597) (3,100)
Finance costs [ DN 10 (20,688) (19,678)
Share of profits of associates DB N T A 22 59,304 41,751
Share of profit (loss) of a joint ME—EAEEDE
venture A (E518) 23 214 (930)
Profit before taxation & B Bz 46,086 232,687
Taxation 1 11 (37,114) (55,801)
Profit for the year FERA 12 8,972 176,886
Other comprehensive income Htt2E W (%) :
(expense):
Item that will not be reclassified BresdoBRERD
to profit or loss: THH
Exchange differences on translation F# & IHE B & 2 R EHE
from functional currency to mEATE L Z58
presentation currency 134,615 (43,119
Total comprehensive income FEL2EKEBEE
for the year 143,587 133,767
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income

GeBEmREMaEERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

2020 2019
—ECZEF  ZThHF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B RE FEx FHET
Profit for the year attributable to: LA~ A TG EE 5 F) :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ DN 8,915 175,886
Non-controlling interests AR R 57 1,000
8,972 176,886
Total comprehensive income LWTATEGFEEEZEA
for the year attributable to: Was 45
Owners of the Company ZININEIEF DN 142,081 133,370
Non-controlling interests FEIEARME S 1,506 397
143,587 133,767
2020 2019
—F=-BF T NF
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Earnings per share BREF
Basic HIK 15 0.006 0.112
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e PRI R R

At 31 December 2020 R—ZE=_FF+_-_F=+—8

2020 2019
—EBEF —E-NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
ibE=d FHET FHT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  WENKE 17 902,392 790,341
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 104,176 103,596
Investment properties A 19 22,305 23,076
Goodwill (SIS 20 885,408 1,025,495
Intangible assets B EE 21 72,351 113,423
Interests in associates B N A B 2 22 450,364 423,245
Interest in a joint venture R—EEeEtENER 23 8,414 7,676
Deferred tax assets RIEH AR E 35 1,333 1,940
Rental and other deposits paid ENHERE MEMES 27 2,402 20,249
2,449,145 2,509,041
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 24 112,491 160,771
Trade receivables E 5 WG IE 25 512,533 557,708
Contract assets BUHEE 26 113,187 170,724
Other receivables, prepayments  E {th FEUR X IE « B Z0TE
and refundable deposits AIREF & 27 68,899 35,936
Tax recoverable AIY B B TE 2,709 2,329
Pledged bank deposits BEEMRITER 29 14,523 9,476
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR LIRS 29 315,391 201,168
1,139,733 1,138,112
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e BRIR L ERER

At 31 December 2020 R—ZE=_FF+=-F=+—H

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
BIEE FHET FAETT
Current Liabilities RBEE
Trade payables 2 S FEFRIE 30 214,037 226,288
Other payables and accruals HibENZIE R EAAER 31 102,269 92,568
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 991 4,354
Amounts due to non-controlling R EPNGIE R A v S
interests of subsidiaries EE| 28 2,484 8,290
Bank borrowings RITIEE 32 411,206 256,462
Bank overdrafts RITEX 29 - 2,728
Income tax payable FERT TS HR 16,503 32,921
747,490 623,611
Net Current Assets TREBEESEER 392,243 514,501
Total Assets less Current HEERRBERE
Liabilities 2,841,388 3,023,542
Non-current Liabilities E1 =
Government grants BT 2 34 28,383 27,297
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 302 551
Deferred tax liabilities EXEIEAE 35 42,876 69,518
71,561 97,366
Net assets EEZFE 2,769,827 2,926,176
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Consolidated statement of financial position
e BRI

At 31 December 2020 R—ZE-EF+-A=+—AH

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B5E FET TFET
Capital and Reserves BEXK#E

Share capital A& 36 7,839 7,839
Share premium and reserves BRI R E R EHE 2,738,607 2,896,462

Equity attributable to owners KRTIEB ANEEER
of the Company 2,746,446 2,904,301
Non-controlling interests eI I fE 2 23,381 21,875
Total Equity XA 2,769,827 2,926,176

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 230 $58F230E WG A M BBED N -
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of ——F=A=+HEZEESH FRFELR
Directors on 30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: o WA TIALTREEE

Mr. Qin Song Mr. Huang Wanru
I FHE EBMELE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= EF
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

GeEmB PR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —Z —FF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGE PN, 1
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Dividend Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
Bx  REE tERE  BHRE  RERE  EXGE  REEA & FiRER ER4R
HK§000  HKS000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tér  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr  TEr TR TR TEn
(Note g) (Note b)
(M) (WD)
At 1 January 2019 —T-NE-A-H 7,839 4,936,913 189,225 (2,905,278) - (79594) 614,558 2,763,663 34,938 2,798,601
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - 175886 175,886 1,000 176,836
Other comprehensive FEAMZARY
expense for the year - - - - - (42,516) - (42,516) (603)  (43,119)
Total comprehensive (expense) E£E 2 (Fix) Yz
income for the year ot - - - - - (42516) 175886 133370 397 133,767
Final dividends for 2019 ZE-NERERBRE
proposed (note 16) (HizE16) - - - - 299,936 - (299,93p) - - -
Dividends declared to mIEERERS RRE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (2574 (2,574
Acquisition of additional equity Y& — 1A B A B FES
interest in a subsidiary (note b) A& #E (K5t b) - - 655 (2,447) - 143 8,917 7,268 (10,886)  (3,619)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-h&
+-A=1—H 7,839 4,936,913 189,880 (2,907,725) 299,936 (121,967) 499,425 2,904,301 21,875 2,926,176
Profit for the year FREF = o = - - - 8915 8915 57 8972
Other comprehensive FEEMZEKNR
income for the year - - - - - 133,166 - 133,166 1,449 134,615
Total comprehensive FE2ENHAE
income for the year - - - - - 133,166 8915 142,081 1,506 143,587
Final dividends for 2019 ZE-NERERBRE
proposed (note 16) (s 16) - - - - 156,789 - (156,789) - - -
Dividends recognised as BAEDEHRE
distribution (note 16) (B 16) - - - - (299,936) - - (299,936) - (299,936)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZHF
+-A=1—H 7,839 4,936,913 189,880 (2,907,725) 156,789 11,199 351,551 2,746,446 23381 2,769,827
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For th

Notes:

(@)

e year ended 31 December 2020 i Z —FE T F+ A =1+—HIFE

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain statutory reserves. Appropriation
to such reserve is made out of profit after taxation as reflected in the
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts
and allocation basis are decided by its board of directors annually. The
appropriation to statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’
registered capital. The statutory reserves can be used to make up prior
year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of capitalisation issue.

Other reserves comprised (i) the merger reserve of HK$79,000 which
arose from the difference between the nominal value and premium of
shares of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof; (i) issue of 480,000,000
shares of the Company with fair value of HK$4,267,200,000 at 14 April
2011 to Mr. Tsoi Tak, the former controlling shareholder of the
Company in exchange of its entire equity interests in Brilliant Circle
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited) which were acquired by Mr. Tsoi Tak, that former
controlling shareholder at 10 September 2009 using cash and certain
listed shares held by him with fair value of HK$1,781,817,000 in
aggregate; (i) an amount of HK$516,437,000 resulting from the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Bengbu Jinhuangshan
Rotogravure Printing Company Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company; (iv) an amount of HK$81,223,000 resulting from the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Giant Sino Investments
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in December
2014; (v) an amount of HK$119,000 resulting from the change of equity
interests of non-controlling shareholders from 0.69% to 0.51% in
Shenzhen Kecai Printing Com., Ltd in November 2015, (vi) an amount
of HK$1,409,000 resulting from the acquisition of additional equity
interests in Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Colour Packing Co., Ltd, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company in August 2017, (vi) an amount of
HK$465,000 resulting from the acquisition of additional equity interests
in Zhaotong Antong Package Material Co., Ltd, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in August 2018, and (vii) an amount of
HK$2,447,000 resulting from the acquisition of additional equity
interests in Shenzhen Kecai Printing Com., Ltd, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, in December 2019.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

2020 2019
—EF-FF  ZFTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEH
Profit before taxation & B Bz A1) 46,086 232,687
Adjustments for: JHEE -
Share of profits of associates SIGEEE R EaF (59,304) (41,751)
Share of (profit) loss of a joint ME—HEELHE
venture Cm ) B8 (214) 930
Finance costs ELEZ97iN 20,688 19,678
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WENMEREITE
equipment 108,427 92,250
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,017 6,508
Depreciation of investment SEYETE
properties 2,176 1,891
Impairment losses on financial TREERENEENRE
assets and contract assets, B8 (k=)
net of reversal 2,267 1,960
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE#H 41,769 50,190
Interest income FLEWA (4,488) (1,586)
Gain from changes in fair value BEARBEFABZNESE
of financial assets at FVTPL BEAAEBEEEZHKZ (132) (1,896)
Gain from changes in fair value BARBEFABSNSH
of financial liabilities at FVTPL BEAREBEZS KA — (1,190)
Government grants for acquisition WEEM % ~ S MR ER
of property, plant and equipment BB € (2,079) (2,523)
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BE&KEESN
plant and equipment Wz (1,024) (492)
Impairment losses on property, Y% -~ E MR ERESE
plant and equipment 27 33
Gain arising from early termination RAKIEHEESHEED
of lease contracts Wz ) (20)
Recognition of write-down on TR PRE 7 EHUR
obsolete inventories 4,678 1,053
Impairment losses on goodwill P E (B E R 176,000 15,000
Unrealised net exchange losses HIE N BETEE (160) 7,524
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

MEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

2020 2019
—EEF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Operating cash flows before LEESEHANCEE
movements in working capital HeEnE 340,726 380,246
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERLGEMN) 50,628 (1,093)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables & 5 F& W3R8 2> (38 40) 75,497 (29,617)
(Increase) decrease in other receivables, Hfih &I FIE - FERTFRIB &
prepayments and refundable deposits ~ AJ:REE] & (3 h0) (26,694) 2,438
Decrease (increase) in contract assets & #& &R (3E0) 64,941 (8,446)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables 2 5 FE {3018 (R 2>) #2410 (25,763) 882
Increase in other payables and accruals  E {th & (< 718 [ fE =t & 8 f1 3,607 5,354
Cash generated from operations REEFES 482,942 349,764
Income taxes paid B ATEH (81,575) (49,921)
Interest paid EEREUPS) (20,305) (19,819)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETHELERESFHE
ACTIVITIES 381,062 280,024
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

FEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE
2020 2019
—B-BF _T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEED
Purchase of structured deposits BALBMETR (116,816) (1,020,654)
Redemption of structured deposits BRIAEETR 116,948 1,022,550
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEYE - W= MREAK
equipment and intangible assets B EE (188,675) (138,813)
Placement of pledged bank deposits & B KIFIRITFER (49,865) (26,763)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2B I ERITIER 45,700 28,352
Dividend received from an associate, B — M 2 RWEUR S
net of withholding tax (HBRTEF) 55,566 69,566
Proceeds on disposal of partial & — B2 A |) 200 B
equity interest in an associate Fr1S k18 - 22,160
Payments for rental deposits YNHEERe - (690)
Collection of rental deposits WEHEZRs 690 -
Payments for contingent consideration 7 sk AKX (B - (436)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMREMSHIAE
plant and equipment 39,921 12,628
Interest received 2HFLE 4,488 1,686
Government grants for acquisition WHEMZE « R K& ED
of property, plant and equipment BT B & 1,338 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZBHEARESFH
ACTIVITIES (90,705) (30,514)
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

AN —1
A= iﬁﬁblb%ﬂs’%
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE
2020 2019
—E-TFF ZFTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AMEEE
New bank borrowings raised FIgIRITEE 644,019 415,261
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHERRF (3,840) (4,152)
Payments for purchase consideration ~ X EERE - (11,415)
Repayments to a non-controlling interest [a] FE12E A% #E 258 18 7K (5,998) -
Advance from a non-controlling interest 38 & 3E1Z BE RE2R HY EA TR - 292
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRITEE (513,030) (777,603)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IR SR B
interests - (2,574)
Dividends paid BEIRE (299,936) -
Acquisition of non-controlling U B — R B B 2 &) B P AR A 25
interest of a subsidiary - (3,618)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEEEEARESFE
ACTIVITIES (178,785) (383,809)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASH RE&RELZEEEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B 8 111,572 (134,299)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HWEBEEK
AT 1 JANUARY HeZEEEH 198,440 335,611
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NS [ R 5 Sh 52 22 5,379 (2,872)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+T=ZA=+—HHHRER
AT 31 DECEMBER, He&ZEEER -
represented by r*x 315,391 198,440
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 315,391 201,168
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (2,728)
315,391 198,440
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IRk

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
11 November 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Cai Xiao
Ming, David (the “Controlling Shareholder”). The address
of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is Room 1201A, 12th Floor, Capital Centre, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are engaged in
provision of the printing of cigarette packages,
manufacturing of paper packaging materials,
manufacturing of laminated papers, manufacturing and
sale of radio frequency identification (“RFID”) products,
printing of packages and decoration matters, research
and development on printing technology, wholesale,
import and export of the packaging products and other
related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is different from the
Company'’s functional currency of Renminbi (“RMB”). The
directors of the Company adopted HK$ as presentation
currency. For the convenience of the consolidated
financial statements users, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, as the Company’s
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.1 Application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year.
The amendments provide a new definition of
material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that
materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with
other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The application of the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

EREEMBREREN(ER
MR E R ) BRI A ()

E 9840 18 14 7K 4 B0 H R] & R M I 3R
EEAR AT A

7N 5% [ 30 % 52 A FE A N 51 2 28 AR (B i
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not yet effective:

PEET A -

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and ERBBRLER| RIeAHR

the related Amendments' E175 BEET

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent ER RS EL Covid-1943
HKFRS 16 Concessions* F16% (BT X) HEER*

Amendments to Reference to the BAETHRS EE BaERES/2
HKFRS 3 Conceptual Framework? E3% (BETK)

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark ERAMBEREEREY - FIREENE
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 25 BRGHERE 0% - - VE
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 BBUBREREAETSR

%S%Eﬁ’%?&%%ﬁﬁ'@%&
BRI REERF 165
(BETK)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets EEH R SER REEREBENT]
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its E0RREES: FARELE AN
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture? 8|E 085 (53]K) BELEHTE®

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as ERehElF 1% BERNEATDH
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current (IBzTA) EREALEA

and related amendments REEST
to Hong Kong (Z3=%F)
Interpretation 5 (2020)' MEBER

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment EReENE16% nE BRI

HKAS 16 — Proceeds before Intended (B R) — BEREAN
Use? g 5UR?

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost EheERE a7 BEEAH - BT
HKAS 37 of Fulfiling a Contract? (B3TR) —RRNRKA?

Amendments to Annual Improvements to EAMHREED BRNHREE
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-20202 (BETX) “E-\F2

!
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

o update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in
June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) instead of
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued in
October 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed
in a business combination; and

e add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to

have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

()  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the conditions
are met at the end of the reporting period,
even if the lender does not test compliance
until a later date.
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current and related amendments

to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (continued)

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the
option separately as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1
to align the corresponding wordings with no change
in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2020, the application of the amendments
will not result in reclassification of the Group’s
liabilities.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUSRECYBHRREEREK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEBE

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 REUSEMKERREE
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ —Z =

3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. MURAUBBRREEREK
ST BER (#)

3.2 EXREHBHE(E)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability
in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in October 2010).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets or at fair value. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and
not larger than operating segment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)
A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group of
cash-generating units, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a
group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. MURAUBBRREEREK
ST BER (#)

3.2 EXREHBHE(E)

Goodwill (continued)

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint venture are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any assets, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment in a
joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value
upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or
a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or
joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

3. MURAUBBRREEREK
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A performance obligation represents a good and
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
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° the customer simultaneously receives and o
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances o AKEMELNAIESIMAER
an asset that the customer controls as the PRASZERBARZEHE
Group performs; or E

e the Group’s performance does not create an o  AKEMBEHIWREELER

SEBEBRAENEE B
AR BB 92 BT THE DA URER
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asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e B IS R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEARESHEBREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SETBER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

Revenue from the printing of cigarette packages
and manufacturing of laminated papers with no
alternative use are recognised over time.

Revenue from the sale of RFID products and
manufacturing of paper packaging materials are
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for an presented
on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with
a customer that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

3. MURSUBBRREEREK
SRR (@)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUSRECYBHRREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEBE#E)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which it
is located or restoring the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever the lease term has changed,
in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and any
appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset.
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. MURAUBBRREEREK
ST BER (#)

3.2 EXREHBHE(E)

Leases (continued) HeE &)
The Group as lessor (continued) REFERHEA (B)
Lease modification MEEHR

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions
are accounted for as lease modifications, including
lease incentives provided through forgiveness or
reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e B IS R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. MURSUBBRREEREK
SRR (@)

3.2 EAEFEEE)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of
the Group’s net assets in RMB to the Group’s
presentation currency HK$ are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve. Such exchange differences
accumulated in the exchange reserve are not
reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs (continued)
Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale
is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Government grants relating to compensation of
expenses are deducted from the related expenses,
other government grants are presented under “other
income”.
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3.2 EXREHBHE(E)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Retirement benefit costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and other state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at
the earlier of when the Group entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and
when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
costs of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

3. MURAUBBRREEREK
ST BER (#)

3.2 EXREHBHE(E)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to
the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration
is allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets
and subleased by the Group under operating
leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

If an item of investment property becomes owner-
occupied property because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the cost and accumulated depreciation of that item
at the date of transfer are transferred to property,
plant and equipment for subsequent measurement
and disclosure purposes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. MURAUBBRREEREK
ST BER (#)

3.2 EXREHBHE(E)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development
phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure (continued)
The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (continued)
The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairments loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchase or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. MURAUBBRREEREK
ST BER (#)

3.2 EXREHBHE(E)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” applies.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. GUREHBEBRREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEBE@®E)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EARETBEE)
Financial instruments (continued) SRITHEE)
Financial assets (Continued) TEIEE (&)
Classification and subsequent measurement of TREEMNDEREEE (&)
financial assets (Continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if: WEFe TIMEHE - MlemEER
FIEEERZ -
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose e IFEANEHALEMmME
of selling in the near term; or A3
e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of o RYINHERHBRAEESE
identified financial instruments that the Group AEEMNEHE SR IAR
manages together and has a recent actual BHEN 85 H&hH
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or BREEERN B ARR 3K
e it is a derivative that is not designated and o  WIFEBEMER BRI
effective as a hedging instrument. TAMPTETLIA -
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a SEAN - N8R E 3 g S AT HE
financial asset that are required to be measured at —IHARB KA RIEE RIEA
the amortised cost or fair value through other AEEFAEMEERRS (KR
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as measured at REEFAHEMEEKE]) B
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces BEERAABHETT ABZS
an accounting mismatch. 2 FIRABBIETEERIK
B &t AL o
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the assets is no longer credit-
impaired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial
assets (including trade receivables, other receivables
and refundable rental deposits, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances) and contract assets
which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

M

Significant deteriorate in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
assets is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUSRECYBHRREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEBE#E)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)
(iiy  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

3.2 BEAREFBEE)
ERMIA(E)
EREE (&)
CRMEERSHNEEREE)

(i)

ey
A=

BELREE

TREELE R ALEM
(B mEEMRKER
EREBRIMTE)EE
R@EFEERE SREE
MR EERENEERERA
B TSR AT B R BUR ¢

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer @ BEITABERALIR
or the borrower; BAUR

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or b) ERAE#X(WEA S
past due event; =)

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for c BERANERABRAR
economic or contractual reasons relating R N R O
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, A %32 iR WM A
having granted to the borrower a ABREERATE S
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not TERMESR
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower (d) &R AR AT RE Pa AR

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

ESEMPHEAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

3. MURAYBHRREEREK
SR (#)

3.2 EARETBEE)
ERMIA(E)
ERHEE (&)
CRMEERSNEEREE)

(iv)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
contract assets are considered on a collective
basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information
such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes
into consideration the following characteristics
when formulating the grouping:

e  Aging and past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° Length of customer relationship.

3. MURAUBBRREEREK

EEBE#)

3.2 BEAREFBEE)
ERMIA(E)
EREE (&)
CRMEERSHNEEREE)

V)

BEHEEEBRNTERER
(&)

—RimnE  BHEEEERS
REBENENAEENMA
BHReREEANKEEH
W AREREZHO
EE - RYVITHEABETH
BERFIRIFR -

HETEZRUREREHNE
ENzHEREEERLE
BRERREN LATEMER
BIEEENSHREEER
HEREEEE -

PERERAME - ANEEF]
AR R E BIA TRE
o HRERKBHIBEN

e BEBANME RE
RITE R

« EFBRFEH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(continued)
(v Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified either as
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

3. MURAUBBRREEREK
ST BER (#)

3.2 EXREHBHE(E)

ERMTHE(E)

SHEE(B)
RITERSREE
AREBEERBNEERESREDN
EETHIREREm A R LR —
BeREE -

R R B A AR £
MEER  BERMEHRE KK
FEUH(E 2 R ZE RN B iR

TEEE
DRRER R

BB LR T ANREBMET S
MZHMEE RSB B ER
TENEESTBRTRBENE

o

B

BmITA

Rz T A Y78 A AN 5 B R HIRUA
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B ERIG A - RAR TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEARESHEBREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SETBER (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 BEXEHBHE(E)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MUSRECYBHRREEREK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liability is a present obligation that arises
from past events but is not recognised because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

EEBE#)

3.2 BEAREFBEE)
ERMIA(E)
BERIAEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

4.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition from sales of products with no
alternative use over time

Under HKFRS 15, control is transferred over time when
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date. Significant judgement is required in determining
whether the terms of the Group’s contracts with
customers in relation to printing of cigarette packages
and manufacturing of laminated papers with no
alternative use create an enforceable right to payment for
the Group. The Group has considered the relevant local
laws that apply to those relevant contracts and opinion
from external legal counsel. Based on the assessment of
the Group’s management, the relevant sales contracts
create an enforceable right to payment after taking into
consideration the legal opinion, contract laws and the
legal and regulatory environment in the PRC. Accordingly,
contracts relating to printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers with no alternative
use is considered to be performance obligation satisfied
over time.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Contingent liabilities for a lawsuit

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an ex-staff of
a subsidiary of the Company (the “Claimant”) initiated a
lawsuit against the Company to Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration. Details are set out in note 46.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Shenzhen
Court of International Arbitration verdicted the Company
is liable to compensate HK$20,000,000 to the ex-staff.
The directors of the Company consider that all allegations
raised by the Claimant are unfounded and without merits,
and the arbitration is invalid. The Company applies for
cancellation of the arbitration to Shenzhen Intermediate
People’s Court after consulted with the lawyer. According
to the lawyer’s opinion, the arbitration is invalid due to (i)
the matters verdicted do not fall within the scope of the
arbitration agreement; (i) Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration verdicted the matters out of its jurisdiction
scope when determining the compensation amount; (iii)
the arbitration procedures violate the arbitration rules. In
this regard, the Company has categorically defended and
challenged all the claims by the Claimant during the
judicial process. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is not probable that a material outflow of
resources will be required based on the legal advice and
no provision is considered to be recognised to the
consolidated financial statements accordingly. In cases
where the future actual result of sentence differ from the
current judgement of the directors of the Company, a
provision would be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income accordingly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

4.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of each reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate certain assumptions, including the
discount rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
sales growth rate in order to derive the net present value
of the discounted future cash flow model. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
changes in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows or upward
revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss or
further impairment loss may arise. Furthermore, the
estimated cash flows and discount rate are subject to
higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the current
year due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
goodwill was HK$885,408,000 (2019:
HK$1,025,495,000. During the year ended 31 December
2020, impairment loss on goodwill of HK$176,000,000
(2019: HK$15,000,000) was provided. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are set out in note 20.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE 5. W&
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) BEFEEHOWELE
customers
2020 2019
—B-BF _—_TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Printing and manufacturing of ENR| % & B e B 5
cigarette packages and related HEEEME
materials
— Printing of cigarette packages — EfIEE B 1,133,380 1,283,107
— Manufacturing of paper — BLE AR R
packaging materials 94,366 83,620
Manufacturing of laminated papers &li&E# & 45 35,537 42,028
Sales of RFID products SHE T HE 4 Bl EE o 76,156 87,078
1,339,439 1,495,833
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e M ERARM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& &)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () BEEEAWBESE(E)
customers (continued)
Timing of revenue recognition Uy 22 7 R B
2020
kg 23
Manufacturing
Printing of of paper Manufacturing Sales of
cigarette packaging  of laminated RFID
packages materials papers products Total
AREE Rty R HESMA
a% BEIH LEE wAER Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TER TER TER TER
A point in time PEHEE = 94,366 - 76,156 170,522
Over time [l 1,133,380 - 35,537 - 1,168,917
Total &t 1,133,380 94,366 35,537 76,156 1,339,439
2019
—T-NE
Manufacturing
Printing of of paper  Manufacturing Sales of
Cigarette packaging of laminated RFID
packages materials papers products Total
HRER S e HENA
(25 BEHH Ba Bl ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THET TAL TEL ThEL
A point in time NSRS - 83,620 - 87,078 170,698
Over time BRE 1,283,107 - 42,028 - 1,325,135
Total ) 1,283,107 83,620 42,028 87,078 1,495,833
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& &)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) BEEAWZSE(E)
customers (continued)
Geographical markets BT
Information about the Group’s revenue from external BAKNEERGINEE P Wz
customers is presented based on the location of ERTDBBEFPHAEMES] - M
customers irrespective of the origin of goods/ TmEm,/ R E IR o
services.
2020
i 23
Manufacturing
Printing of paper Manufacturing Sales
of cigarette packaging  of laminated of RFID
packages materials papers products
HRIEE RER B HERNE
a% BEMH BRE ABIER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THR THER TR
PRC H 1,133,380 94,366 35,537 68,421
Others (Note) i (M5E) - - - 7,735
Total st 1,133,380 94,366 35,537 76,156
2019
—ENF
Manufacturing
Printing of paper  Manufacturing Sales
of cigarette packaging of laminated of RFID
packages materials papers products
HRIEE RER BiE HESE
2 BEMH LS BhlEM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TER TR
PRC w 1,283,107 83,620 42,028 74,185
Others (Note) Hib (F55) - - - 12,893
Total st 1,283,107 83,620 42,028 87,078
Note: Others included the Republic of Indonesia, the United MisE - Bt IENERAEEME  EFRER
States of America and the Republic of Korea. B R AERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

(i)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers

The Group’s contracts with customers for printing
of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
laminated papers are tailor-made based on
customers’ specification with no alternative use to
the Group. Taking into account the contract terms,
the legal and regulatory environment in the PRC, all
contracts provide the Group’s enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date and
hence the revenue is recognised over time.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, the
customers have no right to return products except
those with quality flaw. The Group generally does
not require the customers to pay in advance. The
customers should settle the trade receivable within
60 to 90 days upon the issue of value added tax
invoice.

A contract asset is recognised over the period
basing on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation representing
the Group’s right to consideration because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in delivery of goods. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional. The Group typically
transfers the contract assets to trade receivables
when the goods are delivered to the customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Manufacturing of paper packaging materials
Revenue from the manufacturing of paper
packaging materials is recognised when control of
the goods has transferred, being at the point the
goods are delivered to the customers. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific locations.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, the
customers have no right to return products except
those with quality flaw. The Group generally does
not require the customers to pay in advance. The
customers should settle the trade receivables within
60 to 90 days upon the issue of value added tax
invoice.

Sales of RFID products

Revenue from the sale of RFID products is
recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being at the point the goods are
delivered to the customers. Delivery occurs when
the goods have been shipped to the customer’s
specific locations. Under the Group’s standard
contract terms, the customers have no right to
return products except those with quality flaw. The
Group has no liability to refund some or all of the
consideration to the customers. The Group
generally does not require the customers to pay in
advance. The customers should settle the trade
receivable within 60 to 90 days upon the issue of
value added tax invoice.

5.

Wz (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligation

All the Group’s contracts with customers are for
periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 is not disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods delivered or services provided. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments currently
are (i) printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages
and related materials, (ii) manufacturing of laminated
papers and (iii) sales of RFID products. The CODM
considered the Group has three (2019: three) operating
and reportable segments which are based on the internal
organisation and reporting structure. This is the basis
upon which the Group is organised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment.

7 ERE R ()
23S R A
AT RAEBIZAHRE S BE DU
EREED o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=+—HLE

E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages Manufacturing Sales
and related  of laminated of RFID
materials papers products Total
BRI R i
BEEAER HESE
HEMH HEELH BRER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER T T T
Segment revenue D 1,227,746 35,537 76,156 1,339,439
Segment profit Db Al 257,347 4,929 3,618 265,804
Other income HipA 46,939
Other gains and losses Hthiis kBB (173,846)
Unallocated expenses AR Y 129,464
Finance costs BEKK (20,688)
Share of profits of associates MBS R AR A 59,304
Share of profits of ajoint venture {5 —FEA LD EEF 214
Impairment loss on financial assets 4 BEE KA HEERE
and contract assets, net of B8 (MREE)
reversal (2,267)
Profit before taxation R ATR A 46,086
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER#E)
Segment revenues and results (continued) w1l eI ES AE-P)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hE+=-A=+—HLE
E

142

Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette  Manufacturing Sales
packages and of laminated of RFID
related materials papers products Total
BllHpES
BERER HESR
REE HEEAH HHER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
Segment revenue 7 EE 1,366,727 42,028 87,078 1,495,833
Segment profit DA 324,629 8,621 7,157 340,407
Other income Hil A 33,460
Other gains and losses Hivhm BB (24,049)
Unallocated expenses FORRY (136,314)
Finance costs BERA (19,678)
Share of profits of associates A {EEE& A A1 %A 41,751
Share of loss of ajoint venture  AE—fA L EER (930)
Impairment loss on financial eREERSNEERE
assets and contract assets, B (NkRERE)
net of reversal (1,960)
Profit before taxation BRE AL A 232,687
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of corporate management
expenses, directors’ emoluments, share of profits of
associates, share of profit (loss) of a joint venture, finance
costs, other income, other gains and losses, impairment
loss on financial assets and contract assets, net of
reversal, amortisation of intangible assets relating to
customer relationship and other expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers.

6.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating and reportable segments:

/'\ﬁl&ﬁ*ﬂ_(ﬁ%

THEEREE

LAT7%$¢I&Z«<%&T$E 2 ERE
THEERBEDSN

Segment assets DEEE
2020 2019
—EB-EF —NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FHIT
Printing and manufacturing BRI R BLERERE R
of cigarette packages and related HREEM R
materials 1,402,966 1,471,153
Manufacturing of laminated papers — SiEE A 4 28,415 30,867
Sales of RFID products 5 ST SRR R 2 i 206,709 172,322
Total segment assets DEEERE 1,638,090 1,674,342
Unallocated property, plant and ROMYE - BE L& E
equipment 2,513 5,202
Right-of-use assets CREEE 104,176 103,596
Investment properties BEME 22,305 23,076
Goodwill FEES 885,408 1,025,495
Intangible assets BEEE 72,351 113,423
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 1,333 1,940
Interests in associates N RN O 450,364 423,245
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEDENES 8,414 7,676
Rental and other deposits paid EfERe KEMES 2,402 15,243
Other receivables, prepayments and ~ E 4 EUL 1B « TB{7RIE &
refundable deposits ARER & 68,899 35,936
Amount due from a related party e — & B8E 5 5RIE - 5,006
Tax recoverable AJ Y [el 18 2,709 2,329
Pledged bank deposits EEBEEITER 14,523 9,476
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIR S 315,391 201,168
Consolidated assets SEEE 3,588,878 3,647,153
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

Segment liabilities

/\&Bﬁﬂ(ﬁ.ﬁj
ITHEERAE(E)
PHEE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT TET
Printing and manufacturing of ENRI & Bsh 75 28 E1 8
cigarette packages and R B
related materials 202,894 206,915
Manufacturing of laminated papers — HiE1E A 4K 1,457 3,336
Sales of RFID products SHE ST SR R E mm 9,686 16,037
Total segment liabilities DEPEEEER 214,037 226,288
Other payables and accruals Hi N RIBENETER 102,269 92,568
Amounts due to non-controlling JETRY B A B I IR i
interests of subsidiaries HIE 2,484 8,290
Bank borrowings RITEE 411,206 256,462
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 2,728
Income tax payable R RT1SEL 16,503 32,921
Deferred tax liabilities BRI E 42,876 69,518
Government grants BB & 28,383 27,297
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,293 4,905
Consolidated liabilities waaE 819,051 720,977

Segment assets represent certain property, plant and NHEERREZFEBRARESE X
equipment, trade receivables, contract assets and AIERE D EEVA T - RS MRS
inventories which are directly attributable to the relevant BHRWHR  GHNEEURESR -
operating and reportable segment. Segment liabilities DHBAERKEERBNERLEE R

ﬂ$ EDEBEE H B FIA o LTI B

represent trade payables which are directly attributable to
the relevant operating and reportable segment. These are
the measures reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

DEERMFEDHRRATREE

REREERNTER ©
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DIERE)
Other segment information Hith o &R
2020 —EBECEE
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages  Manufacturing Sales
andrelated  of laminated of RFID Segment
materials papers products total  Unallocated Total
DRREE
ERAER HEME
EE RS HERAA BAER PHEE AAE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THT THT TER TET TET THR
Amounts included in the measurement 3+ B SHERT A PEER
of segment profit or loss or SAHSE
segment assets:
Addtion to non-curent assets Notg)  FEFEREAE (M) 135,150 4514 60,814 200478 3,684 204,162
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 85,323 1,323 6,306 92,952 47,603 140,645
Impaiment losses on goodwil BERERE - - - - 176,000 176,000
Impairment losses on trade and B RE B R ERE
other receivables - - - - 2,224 2,224
Impaiment losses on contract assets & 41AE B BB - - - - 43 43
Gaing on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE - BERREHONE
and equipment - - - - 1,024 1,024
Recognition of write-clown on EAREHEHS
obsolete inventories 4,057 - 621 4,678 - 4,678
Impaiiment losses on property, plant 912« BERABREER
and equipment - - - - 2 2
Gain arising from early termination AT HEEA DELRIE
of lease contracts - - - - ®) ®)
Amounts requiary provided tothe  FHIRTELERF LM
CODM but not included in the ErEnEs BEgk
measure of segment profitorloss: ~ SFAKIEE -
Interest income FEWA (2,394) (246) (684) (3,324) (1,164) (4,488)
Interest expense MEF 15,305 3 1,293 16,631 4,057 20,688
Taxation e 26,570 172 880 21,622 9,492 31,114
Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill. M : SERBEETBIENE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEz —Z =

6.

FH+-A=+t—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER )
Other segment information (continued) HithpHER (&)
2019 —E-hEF
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages  Manufacturing Sales
and related of laminated of RFID Segment
materials papers products fotal Unallocated Total
Dl RkEE
BEAER HESA
BEMH  HERAM HAER HiiaE AR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Amounts included in the measurement T EATBHI S TEER
of segment profit or loss or SARSE:
segment assets:
Adaition to non-current assets (Note) R E FEREIEE (13T 94373 617 23,698 118,688 1,705 120,393
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 72612 694 147 73453 59,531 132,984
Impaiment losses on goodwil BEREFE - - - - 15,000 15,000
Impairment losses on trade and B REMEY R AR
other receivables - - - - 2,044 2,044
Reversal of impairment losses ANEENEERRE
On contract assefs - - - - (84) 64
Gains on disposal of property, plant ~ HEE « BE RS ENHIE
and equipment - - - - (492) (492)
Recognition of write-clown EAREHEHR
on obsolete inventories 608 - 445 1,063 - 1,063
Impairment losses on property, plant 1% - BE R GREEE
and equipment - - - - 33 33
Gain arising from early termination AT HEEADELRIE
of lease contracts - - - - (20) (20)
Amounts regularly provided THRIEEERRERL
o the CODM but not included By &N ENTHERE
in the meastre of segment profi TARSE
orloss:
Interest income FEMA (1,094) (29 (306) (1429 (157) (1,586)
Interest expense MEF 26% - 1436 4131 15,547 19,678
Taxation e 40,840 892 1,568 43290 12,511 56,801

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill.

i ERBAETRERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —ZE —FF+_F=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Revenue from major products and services
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products and services is set out in note 5.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the mainland of the PRC (country of domicile).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the geographical
market irrespective of the origin of goods/services.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the

7 ERE R ()
TEERRRB R
BRASEIZEREBRBRENSH
ATHLA KIS -

BEER
A EEREE R E A GERE) &
BT -

ﬁ%§$%@X§9|\*ﬁ%}5W SHVE R}
TRBHIBTISZY - T wEY,/ R
T B 2ROR M ﬁ%ﬁzl»‘ﬁ%@#/ﬁ@)éﬁz
BER - DIREEMNMBAEZRY -

assets.
Revenue from Non-current
external customers assets (Note a)
RBEINEBEF FERBEE (Fitta)
2020 2019 2020 2019
—2-FF “TNF —B-FF “TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET THERT FET
PRC A [ 1,331,704 1,482,940 1,988,958 2,071,232
Hong Kong =8 - - 2,471 4,284
Others (Note b) HAth (FisED) 7,735 12,893 - -
1,339,439 1,495,833 1,991,429 2,075,516
Notes: FiE -

(@) Non-current assets excluded those relating to rental deposit,
deferred tax assets, interests in associates and interest in a joint
venture, in which the operations of these associates and joint
venture are mainly carried out in PRC.

(b)  Others included the Republic of Indonesia, the United States of
America and the Republic of Korea.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER )
Information about major customers FREXEEFNER
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years REEFERERFBMAREBEH
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are BEHE10% Ml T -
as follow:
2020 2019
—EDERF E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
Customer A (Note) ZEPA(ME) 327,566 367,025
Customer B (Note) =25 B(Mfsx) 152,732 242,280
Note: Revenue from printing of cigarette packages. MizT : 2R B ENRIEE B E R -
OTHER INCOME 7. HkA
2020 2019
—EDERF  E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Interest income on bank deposits IRIT R B U A 4,464 1,560
Interest income on rental deposits MEZSF BHA 24 26
4,488 1,586
Sales of scrap materials HERER 10,916 12,212
Processing fee income MIBUA 910 537
Rental income Ha WA 2,622 1,148
Government grants (Note) BT (FEE) 24,789 17,327
Sundry income FEIE A 3,214 650
46,939 33,460

Note: Government grants were received from the government of the
PRC mainly as incentives granted by local authority for
encouragement of its business development and innovation
except for an amount of HK$2,079,000 (2019: HK$2,523,000)
which was granted for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (as details in note 34). These grants are accounted for
as financial support with no future related costs expected to be
incurred nor related to any assets.

During the current year, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$1,505,000 in respect of Covid-
19-related subsidies.

MisE - RITHBS I EFREKLT - T2 AH
ERAEBEBERE KA MELAREE
& ERKEYE - BE kE&EGERR
5E34) &R 2,079,000 T (ZF—h
F 12,528,000 7T ) BRI ©
AIRFIE IS &R - BEA T @ EATAA

HARRARRAS - B BT (e & A EEE -

RAEE - NEEH Covid-1948 682

BEFER UM # Bh & 1,505,0008 7T
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HfthmkEE
2020 2019
—E-EFE T NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Net foreign exchange gains (losses)  4ME Y& (E518) JF58 1,095 (12,597)
Gain from changes in fair value of BRARBEFAERNSH
financial assets at FVTPL BEALBEEZH K 132 1,896
Gain from changes in fair value of BRARBEFABZNESH
financial liabilities at FVTPL BEANEBAEZFS K - 1,190
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - WEREBEKEE
plant and equipment 1,024 492
Impairment losses on goodwiill BEREEE (176,000) (15,000)
Impairment losses on property, Y - BB REEREEE
plant and equipment (27) (33)
Gain arising from early termination RAKEHESOEEN KR
of lease contracts 8 20
Others Hit (78) (17)
(173,846) (24,049)
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL 9. SREERGHNEEREERE
ASSETS AND CONTRACT ASSETS, NET OF (HIBR#ERE)
REVERSAL
2020 2019
—E-EFE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Net impairment losses recognised AT IBRER 8 R E R 18

(reversed) on: (%[E) #%8 -
— Trade receivables — B RUGIA 2,127 2,141
— Contract assets — AWMEE 43 (84)
— Other receivables — Hitb U zom 97 97)
2,267 1,960
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 EBRHEZ_T_TF+_A=+—8H
December 2020 are set out in note 39. IFFE R EFHFIEHRMIFES
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11.

10. FINANCE COSTS . BERA
2020 2019
—E-FF  ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts $R71TE R &iE S F &2 20,570 19,391
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEME 118 287
20,688 19,678
TAXATION
2020 2019
—E-%F TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax: AREAFRIA -
The PRC H
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) TR
([EZEFREH]) 29,575 39,799
Withholding tax TR 36,851 16,408
66,426 56,207
Overprovision of EIT in prior years BEFELEMSH
FREE R (1,209) (475)
Deferred tax (note 35): EFEFR A (MI5E35) ¢
Current year REE (28,103) 69
37,114 55,801
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eI ERRME

11. TAXATION (continued)

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made
as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived
from, Hong Kong.

The PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable prevailing tax
rates from 15% to 25% (2019: 15% to 25%) in the PRC.
Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law for Foreign
Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises”, some
PRC subsidiaries, being a High-Tech Enterprise, were
entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15% for the years from
2020 to 2023 .

Upon the New Tax Law and Implementation Regulations,
the PRC withholding income tax is applicable to
dividends payable to investors that are “non-PRC tax
resident enterprises”, which do not have an
establishment or place of business in the PRC, or which
have such establishment or place of business but the
relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or place of business, to the extent such
dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under such
circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC
subsidiaries to non-PRC tax resident group entities shall
be subject to the withholding income tax at 10% or lower
tax rate, as applicable. Under the relevant tax treaty,
withholding tax rate on distribution to Hong Kong resident
companies is 5%. Deferred taxation has been provided
on undistributed earnings of all subsidiaries and
associates (as details in note 35).

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

11.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

11. TAXATION (continued) 11. HIE (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FRAFRIA S HHE T =REMEE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit Hﬁﬁéi&%ﬁﬁﬂ_ﬂ‘% A EEERIAT -

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
—EDEF  ZTNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation R A5 R A 46,086 232,687
Tax at the applicable rate REARE25%
of 25% (2019: 25%) (Note 1) —T—hF 1 25%)TE
EFiTE (fHsE1) 11,521 58,172
Tax effect of share of profits DB LR B s R
of associates 2 (14,826) (10,438)
Tax effect of share of (profit) ShE—EeEE(Caf) BE
loss of a joint venture MW BB (53) 232
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 1~ ] 05 5 % B9 T 15 52 £
for tax purpose 54,058 24,286
Overprovision in respect of prior years @1 € & A EEE & (1,209) (475)
Additional tax benefit on research and #3455 /958 9N 7551 25
development expenses (Note 2) (FF5E2) (11,536) (11,571)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 i 2 74 78 Eﬂa B 78 o 22 605

Income tax on concessionary rate REEMKRFENER (15,741) (23,487)

Deferred tax on undistributed REME A T/Hyﬁ VN

earnings of the PRC AR5 Ik B R 8 IR AE A TR

subsidiaries/associates 14,878 22,163
Tax effect of undistributed earnings R F B E R B KR DK

re-invested in PRC not taxable BR TS 2 - (3,686)

Tax charge for the year FABIB X 37,114 55,801

Notes: s -

1. The applicable tax rate of 25% represents the applicable income 1. BB % 26% R A A BRI - TTEF
tax rate of the subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Jiangsu, Hubei and iéfﬂit&?%w’ﬂWE’&*TE’JZFHPM%E%R
Anhui in the PRC which constitute the substantial part of the - MENBRATMIAEEHEZE-S=
Group’s operation for the years ended 31 December 2020 and TERZT-NF+ZA=1+— Elﬂ:if
2019. IR DD 27 o

2. Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations, the Group 2. REAMBRBRASLR - AREAES

BINBIEER - ABERFRI - ZH - T
KL & T B R R T 608 T & B
R ANHIRBINT5% ©

could obtain additional tax benefit, which is a further 75% of
certain qualified research and development cost incurred
endorsed by the Shenzhen, Anhui, Jiangsu and Hubei Local
Taxation Administrators.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12, FEREF

2020 2019
BB T NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Profit for the year has been arrived &1 (51 A) T3 & IBEH
at after charging (crediting): FE @A
Staff costs: BT :
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) BE=Me (H:E13) 4,610 3,192
Other staff costs E A8 TR
Salaries and other benefits e MAEMET 160,042 161,608
Contributions to retirement BRIREFEH 2
benefits schemes 7,668 15,021
Total staff costs BT ABEE 172,320 179,821
Less: capitalised in inventories B REEFRERIL (18,968) (20,008)
included in cost of sales T ASHERAR (118,071) (126,037)
35,281 33,776
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET BN 3,423 4,372
Cost of inventories recognised HRARINEFEEKA
as expenses including recognition (BREERRERE
of write-down on obsolete 8 4,678,000 7% 7T
inventories amounting to (ZE—N%F:
HK$4,678,000 1,053,000/%7T))
(2019: HK$1,053,000) 808,612 850,815
Surcharges paid to governmental [T S (PR BT N
authorities (included in other Gt AEMREY)
expenses) - 1,322
Depreciation of property, plant M - BB RREITE
and equipment 108,427 92,250
Depreciation of investment properties 1% & )% 47 & 2,176 1,891
Depreciation of right-of-use assets B EIE 6,017 6,508
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEEEEGIAHEE
(included in cost of sales and A RITEAS)
administrative expenses) 41,769 50,190
Total depreciation and amortisation 3T & tE 1858 158,389 150,839
Less: capitalised in inventories o REERERE (17,744) (17,855)
included in cost of sales S ASHER AR (109,195) (105,338)
31,450 27,646
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

12. FE&EF (&)

2020 2019
—g-®E —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Research expenses e 75,216 67,078
Less: included in cost of sales W EFASHE AN (74,073) (65,300)
Included in other expenses HAEMBEL 1,143 1,778
Shares of taxation of associates DAGEE R RIFIE 12,256 10,385
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2019:
8) directors are as follows:

13. EERTHRARTH

BN EM10B(ZT—NF :8%8)
0] ey (I

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—E-ZEHF+=-A=+—-HBLHF

156

E

Other emoluments
Hit g
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits Total
Fees other benefits schemes  emoluments
ek RINER
ne HinEH TTEIMR BEM
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TERT TERT THERT
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David* Bt - 15 2 17
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive) P (TTHER) - 2,422 31 2,453
Mr. Chen Huapei* PREESZ KA - 419 5 424
Mr. Chen Xiaoliang ** PR R 84 - 504 18 522
Mr. Huang Wanru* BEIMLE™ - 366 1 317
Ms. Zheng Jinghui*** HEEaL - 366 16 382
Non-Executive Director FHTEE
Ms. Li Li FHRL - - - -
Independent Non-Executive BUERTES
Directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy MEBLE 145 - - 145
Mr. Lui Tin Nang BARELE 145 - - 145
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon BXREE 145 - - 145
435 4,092 83 4,610
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EERTHREARHTM &)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hE+=-A=+—HLE
E

Other emoluments
H it 5

Contributions

to retirement
Salaries and benefits Total
Fees  other bengfits schemes  emoluments

ek SRR
ne H it FTEIf el
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR TAT FAT

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David BEALE - 60 3 63
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive) ~ $RiA%E 4 (172K - 1,697 36 1,733
Mr. Chen Huapei FRESE LA - 522 20 542
Mr. Chen Xiaoliang ** PR R 8 4 - 405 14 419
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. Li Li Tt - - - -
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy WERL S 145 - - 145
Mr. Lui Tin Nang EPN: i 145 - - 145
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon BXREE 145 - - 145
435 2,684 73 3,192
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming and Mr. Chen Huapei resigned from the
position as executive director of the Company with effect from 31
March 2020.

> Mr. Chen Xiaoliang was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 12 March 2019.

Mr. Huang Wanru and Ms. Zheng Jinghui are appointed as
executive directors of the Company with effect from 31 March
2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Qin Song is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Ms. Li Li waives her remuneration as non-executive
director for both years. Except for Ms. Li Li, there was no
arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14.
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2019: one) was director and the Chief
Executive of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 13 above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2019: four) individual
were as follows:

TEREFES
AEEBREREHFALTTAEREG(ZF
—NEF: —RB)BARREERITHAR
B BRENOMS N EXHFE13 - &4
T=R(ZF—AF: @R) AL
ST

2020 2019

—BIBF  _T-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits Fe REMEF 2,837 3,159
Contributions to retirement RIRTEAET B R

benefits schemes 57 70

2,894 3,229

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HERMER THIEENR

2020 2019
—E-8F TN
No. of No. of
employees employees

BEAR BEAHK

HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 T T % 1,000,000 8 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BTE
1,500,000/% 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company, the chief executive of the
Group, senior management, or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

BE_Z-_ZER_FT-NAF+_-A
=t—BLEFE AREHREARARR
AMERES  ARETHRAR - SR
EEERD LR HE S S B
T AFEEMAREERINAKRSE
B - SRERREREE -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BREF|
The calculation of the basic earnings per share KAREA ARLERELRZF T
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the THIEUERTE -

following data:

2020 2019
—EDERF E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
Earnings: BF :
Earnings for the purpose of basic RAUGTEERERRZFH
earnings per share (Profit for the AR (RAREA A
year attributable to owners of the FEH M)
Company) 8,915 175,886
2020 2019
—EC-EF  ZTNF
’000 ‘000
TR Fix
Number of shares: ROHE :
Weighted average number of ordinary F AT & & RE AR ZF &
shares in issue for the purpose of BEEBTEBRINE I
basic earnings per share 1,567,885 1,567,885
No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there were MEZYFREBESEERN REAEM
no potential ordinary shares in issue during both years. FFEEHEERBECBITLBR -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. R E
2020 2019
—E-FF  ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders G NHER A9 IREI AR A
of the Company recognised as ERAT R AR S -
distribution during the year:
— 2019 final dividend, — BNZE-NFRH
paid HK19.13 cents per share I& B &8 19.13 L 299,936 -
299,936 -
The final dividend of HK10 cents per share in respect of EEEENBE_T_FTFTA
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK19.13 =+ —BUEFERNRBRESR10
cents), amounting to approximately HK$156,789,000 BIL(ZZ—NF - 19.1381(L) - &5+
(2019: HK$299,936,000) has been proposed by the #7156,789,0007%8 w( = T — N F :
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders 299,936,000 7T ) - M 78 R A% 3R A AR
in the annual general meeting. RBFRKSHERTAIEE -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% -  BERRZRE
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BER BRE
BT BEHE BE  HOERG AE HRIR @it

HK§000  HK§O000  HKEOOD  HKBOOO  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000
TER TETL TER TR TET TER TERL

COST 53
At 1 January 2019 RZZF-n&-F-H 554,458 7,708 795,800 62,305 16,896 29,816 1,466,983
Exchange adjustments B8 797 (155) (16,218) 931) 260) (138 06919
Additions RE 3,564 830 30,648 2,213 3,009 79,275 119,629
Transferred from construction in ERAEETR

progress 373 - 23,337 - - (23,710) -
Transferred from investment properties & BZENE il - - - - - il
Disposals = - - (18,446) 341) 2,665 - (1459
At 31 December 2019 RZEF-NF+-A=F-H 551,134 8,383 815,121 63,246 16,980 83,999 1,538,863
Exchange adjustments ERER 28,301 558 51,342 4,691 805 11,067 9,764
Additions AE 1,463 - 66,609 5279 40 130,086 208477
Transferred from construction in BRALRIR

progress 598 - 16,250 112 - (16,960) -
Disposals e - - (1%B274) 6015) 1934) B2 (13505)
At 31 December 2020 WZZ-FE+-A=+-H 581,49 8,941 823,048 67,313 15,891 207,370 1,704,059
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT ~ HERH{E
At January 2019 R=F-n&-F-H 195,148 1,116 434,388 37,078 8,067 - 676,397
Exchange adjustments EREE (1,632) 61) (8.821) (627) (130) - (1121)
Impairment loss AEER - - - 3 - _ 3
Provided for the year EREE 24,654 2,137 56,663 6,612 1,084 - 92,250
Transferred from investment properties 8B % &M% 429 - - - - - 429
Eliminated on disposals T ERRH - - (6,926) (84) 2,30) - (9,316)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NEF+-A=F-H 218,599 3,792 475,304 43,012 7815 - 748,522
Exchange adjustments ER A% 7,480 435 29,313 3,162 459 - 40,839
Impairment loss REFE - - - 27 - - 27
Provided for the year EREE 23,409 3,028 68,782 11,121 2,087 - 108,427
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - - (92,309) (2,661) (1184) - 96,148)
At 31 December 2020 WZZ-BE+-A=+-H 249,488 7,255 481,0% 54,651 9177 - 801,667
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+-A=1-H 332,008 1,686 341,952 12,662 6,714 207,370 902,392
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 332,535 4,591 339,817 20,234 9,165 83,999 790,341
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

17.

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis, after taking into account of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Over the shorter
of the term of
lease or 30 years

Buildings

Leasehold improvement 3 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

At 31 December 2020, the Group is in the process of
obtaining the property certificates for the buildings with
carrying value of approximately HK$Nil (31 December

17. W% - WMERRE &)

B - BER&EEE (ERTE
BRON) THIRBEAREAELE - RFT RER
EEEZ TG R FRFEE

BF RS 30F

(B & A%E)
HERE 34
5 Ko i 25 5Z 204
ERIY BN 3E54F
B A5

W_E_TF+_A=+—H K&
BNEREEENASBET( TR
F+_A=+—0 : 47,626,000 7T)

2019: HK$47,626,000). REFHIBEEETE -
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FREEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE L HEWME et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT FHT
At 31 December 2020 RZETF
+ZA=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 102,904 1,272 104,176
At 31 December 2019 RZZT—NF
—A=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 98,743 4,853 103,596
For the year ended HE-ZT-TF
31 December 2020 +ZA=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge et 2,277 3,740 6,017
For the year ended HE-_ZT—N&F
31 December 2019 +ZA=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge FEX 2,232 4,276 6,508
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 18. FRREEE (&)
2020 2019
—F-FF ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Expense relating to short-term leases 42 B EBRAFI X 2,042 2,797
Expense relating to leases with MHEEVIZ AT BME
lease terms end within 12 months WEERAE165E B
of the date of initial application of FHEF 12 A RERE
HKFRS 16 HERAM
(excluding short-term leases) (T BEEREES) - 627
Expense relating to leases of EEBEEEHE (T8
low-value assets, excluding EEEEEMNSE
short-term leases of low-value HE) MR
assets 28 69
Total cash outflow for leases MER ML AR 6,028 7,645
Additions to right-of-use assets RNETREEE 412 864

For both years, the Group leases offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 2 to 3 years without extension and termination
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 18. FHAREEE #)

During the current year, there were reduction to right-of-
use assets of HK$334,000 (2019: HK$1,647,000), due to
certain contracts were early terminated, resulting in a
gain on early termination of HK$8,000 (2019:
HK$20,000).

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
staff dormitories. As at 31 December 2020, the portfolio
of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-
term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed as above.

At 31 December 2020, the Group has obtained the land
use right certificates for all leasehold lands (2019:
HK$24,177,000 was in the process of obtaining).

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are
set out in note 39.

RAFE  ARETANRAKRILESE
BEAIRATAR LW 8,000 T (=&
— N5 : 20,000%870) - FRAEEER
4334,0008 w( = T — L F:
1,647,000/87T) °

AEBETHHEIFEI L OHESE -
RZZFE_ZTF+HA=1+—H0 8
HEACREBHEEMI N EXHE
R ERAMESE -

RZZEZTF+-A=+—8 " K&
EC st AR E L ES £ (s A
B(ZZT—NF 1 24,177,000 L
ET DB RFIE) -

HE&BENHEERRDNFIFSEHRH
FE39
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eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19.
The Group leases out warehouses and office properties
under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years
without extension and termination options.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a
result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies of
group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

REW=E

AEERBELKEHELHABE R

AYE- Wi AKRBREE - HH—

RO B/E1E6F  TRERKRK
IFEEHE

HRAEHEONESEERS AN
WeeEHEHE - AR KB & A H
ERHMmAZINERR - HEAK
TEEHRHEEER L FABEA
RAEME RS BEYEAERE -

HK$’000
FHET

COST AR
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—H—H 42,268
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 B (772)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment ~ #EEE% - FBE k& E (721)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H 40,775
Exchange adjustments ME 5 FE R 2,714
At 31 December 2020 R_ZE_ZEF+_HA=+—H 43,489
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—HA—A 16,565
Exchange adjustments PE 5 (328)
Provided for the year FNEME 1,891
Transferred to property, plant and equipment B E¥ % - HFE K& E (429)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+A=+—H 17,699
Exchange adjustments bE 5, 5 B 1,309
Provided for the year FNRE 2,176
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZEF+-HA=+—H 21,184
CARRYING VALUES EEEE
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZEF+_HA=+—H 22,305
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+_A=+—H 23,076
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties with carrying amount of
approximately HK$Nil (2019: HK$292,000) have been
transferred to property, plant and equipment due to the
expiration of lease agreement with a third party. These
plants have been self-occupied by the Group since the
expiration of lease agreement.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2020 was HK$42,515,000 (2019:
HK$39,861,000). The fair value has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. Roma Appraisals Limited is
member of the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong.

The fair value of investment properties located in the city
of Shenzhen was determined based on the market
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties. The fair value of investment
properties located in the city of Benbu was determined
based on depreciated replacement cost approach, which
is based on an estimation of the market value for the
existing structures less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation. There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

19. REYFE (&)

MREE = HI U EREDE
FEHENEEL(ZZT—NLF:
292,000 ) IR EY XD EES
ME - BELREHE BHERED
HILAZR - 2 EWME —EHRASER
)Eﬁo

FEBREVMENIABES

i

AEEREVMER-_ZT-_TF+=
A=+—HB®2anEER42,515000
Bt (= F — N & 1 39,861,0007%
TL) c AR EBETIIREBEEANEERE
FAEMNBYAERBEEGHEMES
BB EERAREITNEEME
o RSEBRTFHEERRAAARS

AEMBENgs -

RARYNTHREMEN R EE
TIREB A RREU RN THRZ 5
BRMSLEIREE - LN ERT
MIEMEN R EEDREFRE
BEERAEETE % EAREHE
BOEATESELE  BREMER
LB NER A M FT B HE B A 1B B
KM@ BEFERANGBET X

REFTMENRAEEE  WEN
= NS EE A AOR & H 3 A #5ik
DL e

2020 F 3 BHITRERERAR]

167



168
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REWE (&)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment AEBREMENDAEBENE(E)
properties (continued)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and RBERR AEBEREMEUAR
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of NABEERERFBET :

the reporting period are as follows:

Fair value Fair value
as at as at
Fair value 31 December 31 December
hierarchy 2020 2019
EA— o ﬂf F\\\:g_ﬁuﬂs
AREE tT=-A=t—-H t=ZB=t+-—H
= HOREE HNOREE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Properties located in the PRC {77 b B 4 1) 2 Level 35E =4k 42,515 39,861
The above investment properties are depreciated on a LR EYEZNTEFRIBIEER
straight-line basis at the following rate per annum: ETE ¢
Buildings 30 years BF 304
20. GOODWILL 20. &
2020 2019
—EDERF  E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
COST BN
As at 1 January R—HA—H 1,126,864 1,140,213
Exchange adjustments PE N AR 42,770 (13,349)
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—8 1,169,634 1,126,864
IMPAIRMENT ME
As at 1 January n—H—H 101,369 88,000
Impairment loss recognised in the year 9 N#ERH)REEIE 176,000 15,000
Exchange adjustments PE R 6,857 (1,631)
At 31 December W+-—A=+—8H 284,226 101,369
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 885,408 1,025,495
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. BHE#E)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to six (2019: six) individual cash-generating
units (CGUs), comprising four (2019: four) subsidiaries in
the printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and
related materials segments, one subsidiary in the
manufacturing of laminated paper segment and one
subsidiary in the sales of RFID products segment.
Goodwill amounted to HK$86,153,000 (2019:
HK$80,775,000) resulted from acquisition of
manufacturing of paper packaging materials of CGU-6, of
which HK$37,907,000 (2019: HK$35,541,000) was
allocated to CGU-1 as CGU-1 is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, resulting from cost
saving on raw materials supplied by CGU-6. The carrying
amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2020 allocated
net of impairment losses recognised to these unites are
as follows:

HREAAMS  BEESREER
B(ZZF—NF: ~E) @ERREE
HEEN - BIEDR REERED R
MEBMESEONE(ZE— AN
FUEKMBAR - BEEAED
=0 — BT B D B A K 8 B A A%
AIERD B —EHB AR - $iE
ReELEBM-6(RERBDEME)
FEE £ /P2 586,153,000 7T (=
T — L4 : 80,775,000/ 7T ) - Hep
37,907,000 w( = T — h F:
35,541,000 87L) L ERSELEE
-1 REAARBRESELEMN-6HE
RMEAEIEKRA - BEHBRSESE
BA1ZEREGHEENHRR
Mmoo R E-EF+-_H=+—H
M EREE (RS ERBREEE)
EENEEMEEERINT

2020 2019
—E-FF TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Printing and manufacturing of cigarette ENffll 5 83 7 /2 5 5
packages and related materials: AR :
CGU-1 WeEESAM 1 689,432 839,460
CGU-2 BEEESEM-2 135,309 126,342
CGU-3 HWeEEHM-3 2,853 2,675
CGU-6 e EESAM-6 48,246 45,234
875,840 1,013,711
Manufacturing of laminated paper: BlaEas At
CGU-4 WeEEHM-4 387 363
Sales of RFID products: SHEFTIERAIER ¢
CGU-5 WeEEEMN-S 9,181 11,421

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H

885,408 1,025,495
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets
(including allocation of corporate assets) that generate
cash flows together with the related goodwill and opening
net working capital balances which are largely integrated
with the cash flows from the CGU under review are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of
impairment assessment.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs arising from printing
and manufacturing of cigarette packages and related
materials, manufacturing of laminated paper and sales of
RFID products were determined individually based on
value in use calculations. The value in use calculations
used discounted future cash flow model based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period and a pre-tax discount rate ranging from
15.14% to 16.22% (2019: 15.17% to 16.03%) for CGUs
arising from printing and manufacturing of cigarette
packages and related materials and manufacturing of
laminated paper, and 13.52% (2019: 14.79%) for CGU
arising from sales of RFID products. Cash flows beyond
five-year period is extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 3.0% . Cash flow projections for the CGUs are
based on the expected terminal growth rate, gross
margin and sales growth rate during the budget period,
which were determined based on past performance of
the Group and the management’s expectations for the
market development.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

20. & #)

B BN EERSROME
BELERE BYEENRERESR
E(TEREEXEENDE) ERE
BRI E M) 2 E A F R EE (KB
DEpETFHNESELBEURAES
TELBER A ASAENREESE

oo

B o

E ENfl & B iE B @ B 5 AR kL -
RUER S M A R SHE 5T SR 3 B E fh
MELANREELEMMITRE S
BIERIREREEFE I NEE °
ZEREEFEAXNEARRER
B ERERFHEMNYBEEN
We R R ERYUEFERE
NEBME AR EEERREE
EBEMBRBBIITEENF15.14%
£16.2% (ZFE—NLF - 1517% &
16.03%) - 1 &8 & 57 #838 5l & on M &=
FIRESEABMMNITIRER13.52%
TE—NF 14.79%) - AFHR
BN MER BT REI.0%E
Bl BREELBUMNBERRES R
FERARBEEHANMNERRKER
EENEREEHEREETET - A
AL EBREATLCRLEREEST
BERENBEMEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. BHE#E)

CGU-1

During the year ended 31 December 2020, due to the
effect of the loss of a major customer in December 2020
and the continuous decrease in revenue resulted from
the drop in average selling price across various products
tiers and market share in Chinese cigarette packaging
industry as a consequence of mandatory tendering
system in China tobacco industry, and the change of
product structure of CGU-1, its value in use is adversely
impacted and decreased to HK$1,185,913,000 as at 31
December 2020. The directors of the Company have
consequently determined impairment of goodwill directly
related to CGU-1 amounting to HK$173,000,000 (2019:
HKS$NIl). No other write-down of the assets of CGU-1 is
considered necessary. The impairment loss has been
included in profit or loss in the other gains and losses line
item.

If the discount rate increases by 5% to 17.03% (2019:
15.93%), while other parameters remain constant, an
further impairment of goodwill of HK$58,669,000 (2019:
HK$nil) would be recognised.

CGU-3

Due to the effect of the drop in average selling price
across various products tiers and the change of product
structure of CGU-3, its value in use is adversely impacted
and decreased to HK$91,392,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019. During the year ended 31 December
2020, due to the expansion of market share which
successfully improve the performance of CGU-3, the
management of the Group determines that there is no
impairment on CGU-3 (2019: impairment loss of
HK$15,000,000 was recognised).

HEEEE N1
HE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H1t
FE R_E_TF+-_A%kE—
ZEBEFHZEULRPREEE
E1T5R B BIZEHE ST RIEXE®R
MEHEBRMISHE N #if
BN RFHERLY  MERESESE
BN 1MEREREEMNE  HF
AEEXHTMNEE  YREZT
—_EF+ A=+ —8BH
1,185,913,000/8 7T » A It + A Q7
EFECMTRERASCEABEV1EE
B8 89 3 2R 1E11 73,000,000 7T ( —
T-NF THE)  c BAHRGE
HEBA 1R E EETEAMUR o R
BEEEBEFABSE FTEMKE R
BB

i 31 IR K I 5% E17.03% ( = F
— L5 : 15.93%) M H M2 &4 F T
2 AERE-—THERAE
58,669,000 8 TL(ZZE—NF : T8
TT) °

REELEMN-3
BE_ZT-hF+_A=+—HLHF
B HRSERENNTHEE K
MRESESXBEMN-SHERGEATH
g HERBESI T EWL RS
91,392,000 L BE_T-FTF
+TZA=+—HLFE WHEHEE
AR SRS ELEM-SHRBEEAM
RA AEEEREECRTEHSES
B -3WEHRBE(ZS—NF  #
R (B K518 15,000,000 7T ) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

20. GOODWILL (continued)

CGU-3 (continued)

If the pre-tax discount rate increases by 5% to 16.18%
(2019: 16.05%), while other parameters remain constant,
an impairment of goodwill of HK$nil (2019: further
impairment loss of HK$2,675,000), an impairment of
property, plant and equipment of HK$nil (2019:
HK$1,538,000) and an impairment of right-of- use assets
of HK$nil (2019: HK$144,000) would be recognised
respectively.

CGU-5

Due to the changes in current economic environment
related to the Covid-19 pandemic, the overseas sales
from CGU-5 is experiencing negative impact. A drop of
revenue indicates that the goodwill related to CGU-5 is
impaired. Its value in use decrease to HK$105,891,000.
The directors of the Company have consequently
determined impairment of goodwill directly related to
CGU-5 amounting to HK$3,000,000 (2019: HK$nil). The
impairment loss has been included in profit or loss in the
other gains and losses line item.

If the pre-tax discount rate increases by 5% to 14.24%
(2019: 15.53%), while other parameters remain constant,
an further impairment of goodwill of HK$5,385,000 (2019:
HKSnil), would be recognised.

Except to CGU-1, CGU-3 and CGU-5 as analysed
above, management believes that any reasonably
possible changes in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGUs to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of respective
CGUs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BREE

Customer Licenses
relationship and franchises Total
EFRAFE MBRBRRESTE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET TET
COST B
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 472,088 8,594 480,682
Write off s (79,042) - (79,042)
Exchange adjustments Rk (35) (150) (185)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+—-—A=+—H 393,011 8,444 401,455
Additions NE - 273 273
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR - 435 435
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTF
+=-A=+—8H 393,011 9,152 402,163
AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 315,585 1,332 316,917
Charge for the year FARX 49,756 434 50,190
Write off ] (79,042) - (79,042)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 3 (10) (23) (33)
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF
+ZA=+—8H 286,289 1,743 288,032
Charge for the year FREX 41,336 433 41,769
Exchange adjustments M 5 SR - 11 11
At 31 December 2020 R-T-ZTF
+=-A=+—H 327,625 2,187 329,812
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF
+ZA=+—8H 65,386 6,965 72,351
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+-—A=+—H 106,722 6,701 113,423
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, customer
relationship has been included in two (2019: two)
individual CGUs, included in the printing and
manufacturing of cigarette packages and related
materials segments. The carrying amounts of intangible
assets as at 31 December 2020 allocated to these unites
are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

21.

BEEE#E)

HBEANATNS  BEFBERTAN
E(ZZE—NF: ME) @RS E
HEEN - BIENRRREERED R
MHBEME S RZTZF
T A=+ —HEMEFEEREE
EEDEEMEEEINT

2020 2019
—B-%F —T-NKF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THETT
Printing and manufacturing of B R & B E B R
cigarette packages and BB E
related materials
CGU-1 W EEER -1 55,814 93,024
CGU-6 REEELERN-6 9,572 13,698
At 31 December ®n+=—A=+—H 65,386 106,722

The above intangible assets of customer relationship
have finite useful lives. The intangible asset of CGU-6 is
amortised basing on the proportion of estimated revenue
for each year to the projected gross revenue from these
existing customers. The intangible assets of CGU-1 are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
periods:

10 years
20 years

Customer relationship
Licenses and franchises
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Included in intangible assets represent customer
relationship acquired in the acquisition of J& 31145 2 E1
& BB 2 7] Yangfeng Printing & Packaging Co., Ltd in
2012, which has been absorbed by /&Y FHF N A R A
7] Shenzhen Kecai Printing Com., Ltd (“Kecai”) and the
acquisition of &I & F ¥ &M EHBBR A 7] Shenzhen
Jinshengcai Package Material Co., Ltd (“Jinshengcai”) in
2018. The acquisition of the customer base has allowed
the Group to stabilise the revenue base from packaging
and printing business. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the customer relationship acquired in a
business combination in 2009 which had been fully
amortised was written off.

The revenue and the consumption of economic benefits
of the customer relationship of CGU-6 are highly
correlated as the fair value of these customer relationship
as at acquisition date was determined based on
contracts and anticipated contracts with these
customers.

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. BREE (&)
BILEAERERN_Z——FEZR
Y5 LENRIGR AT (B RRIIRIY
ENFAERAR (TR RN KR =
TE-NFURBERIMeAEBEN
BERAR(EAXDERESNE
FBER ZREFEREHAEHE
BEREBE RIS R mE
BeHz2—_T—NF+_A=+—
BIEFE R_ZETNFEKEH
RS B R P R A O BB 55 30 3

HeELEM-6MRARESBE
GENZEESEMRE BRAZ
o S B E A R B B A 7
PRERZEEENADRERA
WEFE -

22, REtENA MRS

2020 2019
—B-%F TN
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Cost of investment, unlisted WA - JELET 302,639 302,639
Share of post-acquisition profits and > {HUsiEE % T R E 22 mE
other comprehensive income, Wz (FIBR B U B
net of dividends received 126,594 125,781
Exchange adjustments FE 0,2 21,131 (5,175)
450,364 423,245
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —ZE —FF+_F=+—HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, REEE RTINS (&)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had RZE_EFR_FT-—NF+_A
interests in the following associates: =+—H8 AEERUATEEAQR
R
Place and
Proportion of country of
ownership interest directly establishment/ Registered
Name of entity held by the Group business capital Principal activity
BEEH FEBEEBERARERLA KL/ CEHERER afRE ETEEHR
2020 2019
ZECEF —ZNF
FEeBOBERAR(EELE]) 31% 31% PRC RMB163,052,000 Provision for cigarette
(Changde Jinpeng Printing Co., Ltd.) B AR%163,052,0007T  printing package
(“Changde Jinpeng”) services
RUEEEENRI 0 %R
KEEHES SRR ERAA 40% 40% PRC RMB30,000,000 Developing for intelligent
([REBEBER]) HE AE#30,000,0007C  printing services
(Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi Intelligence BREIRIRSE

Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.)
(“Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi")

The financial information of the Group’s associates are AEEE QTR ERHE A Eﬁi
prepared using uniform accounting policies in conformity AEERMNSHBE NS

with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. The BRmE - BE A AaF AR /225’\
associates are accounted for using the equity method in ZEEE BRI AR - AEBE
these consolidated financial statements. The summarised ERNRMPBEERBERS M "F o
financial information in respect of the Group’s associates IWTHBERBMEBREEENG
is set out below. The summarised financial information WEFEARRAOE L QAR BREK
below represents amounts shown in the associates’ FiRE&ss o

financial statements prepared in accordance with

HKFRSs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, NEtE N TINER (©)

Changde Jinpeng BEESIE

2020 2019

—E-EF —ET-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current assets RENVEE 903,656 740,691
Non-current assets EMBNEE 784,227 822,842
Current liabilities mEaE (257,190) (217,243)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE (5,379) (7,769)
2020 2019

—F-BF —FTNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue Wz 1,061,932 1,033,110
Profit for the year F N A 192,268 145,739

Dividends received from FREYWEZE N

58,491 73,228

the associate during the year
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, REEE NTIHIRER (&)
Changde Jinpeng (continued) EEeHE(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial it ﬁﬂ%ﬁ BHE 2 B4R & B 7% R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the FERRBE QAR EENEREEN
associate recognised in the consolidated financial EER
statements:
2020 2019
—ECEFE ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Net assets of the associate BE N NRIMEEFE 1,425,314 1,338,521
Proportion of the Group’s REEREZ QR
ownership interest in the associate  # B #E#E S tE ) 31% 31%
The Group’s share of net assets REBED(FEEZ A EH
of the associate BEFE 441,847 414,942
Goodwiill [EES 8,517 7,657
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEERBERRMNEZN
interest in the associate FREE 450,364 422 599
Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi RIBEBEE
2020 2019
—EC-EF  —ZTNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Current assets mENEE 13,999 5,654
Non-current assets EMBNEE 1,469 2,996
Current liabilities mEBE (22,532) (7,035)
Non-Current liabilities ERBERE (1,997) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, REERNRINRER (&)
Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi (continued) RERBEE (&)
2020 2019
HK$WOO HK$'000
FERT FHT
Revenue g 9,679 8,623
Loss for the year FREBE (9,808) (8,570)
Other comprehensive expense FAHMEERX
for the year (868) (302)
Total comprehensive expense FANTEMAXERE
for the year (10,676) (8,872)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial T BER M B ERNEGRE VB R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the RERNEE R A FEE’] FREER
associate recognised in the consolidated financial AR -
statements:
2020 2019
HK$@00 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Net assets of the associate B NRNEEFE (9,061) 1,615
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25 B PO EE & 2 &1HY
interest in the associate mAEERLD 40% 40%
The Group’s share of net assets REBOD(EHMENTINEEFE
of the associate (3,624) 646
The unrecognised share of loss Bt A RIRER D LR
of the associate 3,624 -
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBREE R RA
interest in the associate EmrREE - 646
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, REEE NTIHIRER (&)
Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi (continued) REBRBEE (&)
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
The unrecognised share of loss FR—EEE QR RER
of an associate for the year DG &R 3,624 -
2020 2019
—EBIERF  ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Cumulative unrecognised share &N B RET AR EE
of loss of the associate 3,624 -
23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 23. R—EEEENES
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture is as AEBR—EEErENREN
follows: BT :
2020 2019
—EDERF E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Cost of investment, unlisted ERKA - FEET 8,825 8,825
Share of post-acquisition losses and 315 & 12 E518 &
other comprehensive expenses, Hip 2w
net of dividends received (R E YR E) (310) (524)
Exchange adjustments PE H R (101) (625)
8,414 7,676
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 23.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
interest in the following joint venture:

Percentage of
ownership interest/ Place and
voting rights country of
directly held by incorporation/
Name of entity the Group business
*EBEERE HEMEL/
RERER SEny

R—BEghRNER#)

R-ZF_ZFFR-_F-NF+=-A
=+—H AXEERUATAERE
HERER

Registered

capital Principal activity

BERELB RERAELIE RER EMBRA FEEX

FMRE R AR EER AR 49% PRCHE RMB15,000,000 Developing 2D Barcodes
(TRHEL) Note AR®15,000,0007  and 020 solutions
(Shenzhen Keju Internet Technology Bzt BE_HIER020AHR

Company Limited (‘Keju”))

Note: The Group hold 49% of ownership interest of Keju. However,
under a shareholders’ agreement, the Group has the joint control
over Keju because the director resolution will be effective only
when approved by all directors.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

BiaE - REBEBRIE49% A #ERER - A
RBEER G - NEEHRHUES K RES
B REAERARRRALEBESIE
IR -

AEBAELENWHERRRH
FIERTS o AT E B B R R E
BEVBRSENRENEGLELE
I MR TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 23. R—BEELENER &)

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity BEPEFTRARRENRNZEREY

method in these consolidated financial statements. HHmEALR ©
2020 2019
—E-%F  ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Current assets MBEE 18,026 17,222
Non-current assets ERBHEE 168 197
Current liabilities mENAE (1,023) (1,753)
The above amounts of assets T EERBESSE
and liabilities include the following: BIENATEIE
Cash and cash equivalents He RIS ZMHEIER 13,868 15,354
Current financial liabilities (excluding #Z#ERAaE(TREES R
trade and other payables and E b AT FRIB A R HE )
provision) - _
2020 2019
—E-BF  ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Revenue Wz 10,997 5,823
Profit (loss) for the year F R T (E5E) 436 (1,898)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKZE
for the year 1,069 303
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWE (FX) B
(expense) for the year 1,505 (1,595)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEz —Z =

23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

FH+-A=+t—HILFE

23. RA—EEEL¥NERS &)

2020 2019
—EERF  T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Depreciation and amortisation P I 5 (30) (38)
Interest income ISR ON 442 153
Income tax expense FTefRimx 10 (48)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB E R R RN RS ISR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the FERREELER %i AREER
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial HAR
statements:
2020 2019
—ERF  T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Net assets of the joint venture BETENEETFE 17,171 15,666
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBREEDER
interest in the joint venture B REREZS L 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEREEDENERD
interest in the joint venture BREE 8,414 7,676
2020F 3R EEHERBIRARAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

24. INVENTORIES 24. &
2020 2019
—ECDEF  ZT-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET TET
Raw materials FEr e 98,186 151,272
Work in progress TR 6,159 327
Finished goods BIPK T 8,146 9,172
112,491 160,771
During the year, there was a decrease in the net FRNETREMENTERFER
realisable value of certain raw materials due to stock EFHERGmAe L o Bt
surplus. As a result, a recognition of write-down on N S HER ] B3R F(E R D BB
obsolete inventories of HK$4,678,000 (2019: RIRE 77 & MU 4,678,000 7T (=
HK$1,053,000) due to the decrease of net realisable Z— N4 : 1,053,00087T) °
value has been recognised in the current year.
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. EZEWIE
2020 2019
—ECDEF  —T-hEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Trade receivables H 5 EWGR
— third parties —F=H 521,776 567,355
— an associate — —[EEE QT - 4,229
521,776 571,584
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEIERE (9,243) (13,876)
512,533 557,708
As at January 2019, trade receivables from contracts R-_E—-—NhE—A—H KkEARF
with customers amounted to HK$544,637,000. B H R E 5 W IE & 544,637,000

BT °
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows a credit period of 60 days to 90 days
to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables presented based on the date of
delivery goods/invoice date at the end of the reporting
period, which approximated revenue recognition dates
except for receivables arising from printing of cigarette
packages and manufacturing of laminated papers which
are recognised over time upon application of HKFRS 15.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

25. E5 BUEE (&)

AEERTHESEFE0HE90H
MEEH - U T RRBERRIER
NERBEH R (HEREE
REABEE  EREREEM B R
&= RIS 15557 1& B I [ RE A2 B ED
FEBERLBEE S KB KFER
5N 2518 5 e WA Bkl D AT ©

2020 2019
—E-BF  —FNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TAET TAT

0-90 days 0Z90H 462,583 502,367
91-180 days 912180 H 39,828 36,188
181-365 days 1812365 H 5,293 4,842
Over 365 days 838365 H 14,072 28,187
521,776 571,584

As at 31 December 2020, total bills received amounting
to HK$20,286,000 (31 December 2019: HK$21,312,000)
are held by the Group for future settlement of trade
receivables due from third parties. All bills received by the
Group are with a maturity period of less than one year.

R-ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H K
SEFA D W E & #520,286,000
BT(ZE—AF+ZA=1+—8":
21,312,000/870) * Ut HE L EfE
WE=FEB &% - A5BFED
WEEMEIEAG DR —F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Based on the Group’s assessment of historical credit
loss experience of these debtors, including all available
forward looking information and expected settlements,
the Group does not consider default has occurred
despite the contractual payments are overdue more than
90 days due to these customers are mainly state-owned
cigarette companies with strong financial positions. The
management of the Group considers default occurred
when the debtors get into financial difficulty or the
debtors do not repay any trade receivables though the
Group has pursuited for several times, which indicate the
Group may not collect these trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$51,933,000 (2019: HK$57,407,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, HK$12,221,000 (2019:
HK$21,472,000) has been past due 90 days or more.

Other than bills received amounting to HK$20,286,000
(2019: HK$21,312,000), the Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out
in note 39.
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REAREHZERICRITBE(RE
SEERs(BEAB R HATEIEE
B RFERER) T - BRZER
FX2RUBRRNEENEGEE
~A] - BMER N RE BB 0
B A"EETEGZDED A%
BEEBRS EEMHABIERE
MHAESEBALBEEEFME
SEKFIE(REASED ZIRER)
RELEEN  BRAKESRER
Bl FE 5 WA -

R-BE-FEF+-_A=+—H K
SEESRNFIBLEHRBIERNRE
H B 2 %8 HA BR [ 48 18 /& 51,933,000
BL(ZZT—NF : 57,407,000/87C)
WEWERR - TE BB E R
12,221,000 T( = & — hL F:
21,472,000/87T) E 8 HI90H sk A E o

B A& £(20,286,0007%8 T(—Z — N,
F 121,312,000 70 ) W E W E &
O AEBUERZSEBRIFET
(EEESERT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

26. CONTRACT ASSETS 26. EHNEE

2020 2019
—F-FF ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Contract assets: BHEE:

Printing of manufacturing of cigarette ENffll & Slik & /& 6 5 &
packages and related materials sl 112,528 168,760
Manufacturing of laminated papers — &iEE & K 843 2,095
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEERE (184) (131)
113,187 170,724

As at 1 January 2019, contract assets amounted to
HK$165,385,000

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right
to consideration for work completed and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in delivering the goods to the customers at
the reporting date on provision of printing of cigarette
package and manufacturing of laminated papers. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional. The Group typically
transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when
the products are delivered and accepted by the
customers.

The consideration is payable on the earlier of the delivery
and acceptance of the finished goods by customers or
notice from the customer to cancel the order. If the
customer cancels the order, the Group is immediately
entitled to receive payment for work done to date.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out
in note 39.

RZZE—NF—H—B: ' &88EE
/165,385,000 78 7T, ©

RHEETEEANEEWRE THK
MARETRMEBELENER - R
AABEBEENARFAEERES
AHREPRXNEHBERKERM
MBEEAMTE R E M RKE
BME o B BEBENRSEGIE
BREERBREZE SRR -
AREBBERINEMLETFZ
MEBENEEERZE HRIK
15 o

REANEEXIN AKX RETP
BEMSE P 3 HBUSR BB A X
e HEFBUBR]E - AR BRI
BRWEUES B IEATER TER R
I8 o

B - ZFE-_FT—hhF+=

A=Z+—HIFEMEHNEERE
A EF B E M EES9 -
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27. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 27. HieBWRRIE - AARERA

AND REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS BEFT2
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Prepayment for material purchase BERERMEATENRIE 36,225 5,487
Refundable deposits to suppliers SN FHREIEEFHN
and customers ARER & 9,065 7,498
Receivables from sales of scrap SHE B AL B9 FE UL GRIE
materials 8,875 5,124
Other tax receivables H b FE B TH 7,059 9,817
Rental, utility and other deposits e 2RAREMES 6,877 22,318
Staff advances BT E 1,061 4,086
Others Him 2,139 1,855
71,301 56,185
Less: rental and other deposits paid 5 : st AIEREI & E
shown under non-current MEMHEERe X
assets Hihize (2,402) (20,249)
Amounts shown under current assets st AREIE ER SR 68,899 35,936
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables HE_E_TFER_FE—AFt+=
including refundable deposits to suppliers and customers, RA=+—HLtFEaE M fERFIE
staff advance, rental, utility and sundry deposits and (BEIMFHEREEPHAEE
others for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 Fle - BIRY - -He  ARARFME
are set out in note 39. B A REM) BER G FIBEHNH
739 -

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 28. BT FFERER RIE
INTERESTS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable EBEFEAEERTF 2EREBRE
on demand. SKIEE o
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29. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH/BANK
OVERDRAFTS
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.001% to 1.75% (2019: 0.001% to 0.30%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rates at 0.30% (2019: 0.30%) per annum. Pledged bank
deposits represents deposits pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities of bills payables granted to the Group.
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant bills payables.

29.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash and bank overdrafts that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities are stated below:

EEARTER RITERRK
RE MRITEX

IRITHERIZTISFEFENF0.001%
E175%(ZF — LF :0.001% =
0.30%) &t B - E | IRITIF RIZE
EF A EK030%(=ZF — h F:
0.30%) &t B - EE|FRITIFHIBED
ERTRITAERAEERERNE
BATERRITREMNTRK - DHEHF
BROTFREREERERNSERER
fRBR o

NEBEBEEBNEGEE A
BB ENAEESERRITER
RITAE R IR € A RIRTT38 X BII7R
LI

2020 2019

—ECEF  —T-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

HK$ HIT 3,523 6,285
United States Dollars (“US$”) Ern(ZErxl)) 78,608 30
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30. TRADE PAYABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

30. EZEMNFE

2020 2019

—EDEF ZE-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHBT

Trade payables B SN FIR 214,037 226,288

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

ATRRBEHRRERZBHZS
B 5 RN FRIRNRE DT -

2020 2019

—g-BFE —F-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FH7T

0-30 days 0Z&30H 135,197 118,923
31-90 days 31290H 58,903 77,417
91-180 days 912 180H 8,245 12,286
181-365 days 1812365 H 3,855 4,079
Over 365 days 83 365 A 7,837 13,583
214,037 226,288

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 30
days to 180 days. The Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents sufficient to ensure
that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

As at 31 December 2020, bills amounting to
HK$13,686,000 (2019: HK$5,649,000) were transferred
to suppliers for settling trade payables.

BEEYHNEEHRN FRI0BEE
180 Z M - AEEER LR EH
RekReEEER  ABERRE
FENFRIEREE AT -

RZZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H" A
£013,686,000/%8 7L( = T — JL F :
5,649,000% 7T ) &) T 1k 2 85 % T
EENEEE SR RIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEz —Z =

FH+-A=+t—HILFE

31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. HtENRIEREFTEA
2020 2019
—EC-EF  ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Other tax payables HEMENEIR 36,399 29,603
Salary payable RS 26,329 26,887
Other payables and accruals HEub e RIa &k EEHE B 24,692 23,219
Construction payables FE T B2 EEFIR 7,249 7,351
Water and electricity charges payable fEft/KEE 3,280 1,916
Government grants BT & 2,079 2,319
Deposits received from suppliers BlkitERR € 490 732
Contract liabilities AHBE 1,751 541
102,269 92,568
As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to RZZE-—NF—-—A—H 6H8BEAR
HK$144,000. 144,000 7T °
32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. /ITEE
2020 2019
—EC-EF  ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Bank borrowings comprise: RITEERRE
Unsecured i 411,206 256,462
Carrying amount repayable based BBRTEEE R B BRAR
on scheduled repayment dates: T EEENIRAEE :
Within one year —FR 411,206 256,462
Breakdown of the bank borrowings:  $R7T/2E 54 -
Fixed-rate borrowings TEEEE 411,206 55,875
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE - 200,587
411,206 256,462

2020F F i EHERE

IR AR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ —Z =

32. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group’s floating-rate borrowings are mainly subject
to interest in a range at 100% to 110% of RMB
Benchmark Loan Rates issued by the People’s Bank of
China, Loan Prime Rate issued by the National Interbank
Funding Center of the PRC and Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) in a range at HIBOR plus 1.8% to
3.3% in 2019. The effective interest rates on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

FH-A=+—HILFE

32. RITEE &)

RZZE—hF AEEFEMREE
EIRPBRARRBITETHOAREE
HEEFERHE100% = 110% * F
B2 BRITHEBEFEFROBEAD
,\/Agﬁ“ﬂ?&%/’%fﬁ TRIZEHFE
(IBEBRITRAZEFRE ] N1.8%E
3.3%%#%\ c REBIRITHEENER
FIEMT -

2020 2019

— —TNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FAET

Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE
Floating-rate borrowings TEMEE

4.0% toE 4.35% 4.4%to % 6.5%
NARER 29%t0ZE 6.5%

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

AEBENRBEEERINEGE N
S EBHERRITEENT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT FET

HK$ BIT - 195,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HEAE
2020 2019
—EBEEF  —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FAET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEERE
Within one year —FR 991 4,354
Within a period of more than one BB —FERMEA
year but not more than two years 302 551
1,293 4,905
Less: Amount due for settlement B 128 A REHER
with 12 months shown under Wt A B BRI IE
current liabilities (991) (4,354)
302 551
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates EAREEa BN MEEEE
applied to lease liabilities range from 3% to 6% (2019: ERMENT3%E6%(—E—HF:
from 4% to 6%). 4% £ 6%) °
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies DA EE TR SIS
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group MEHEMREAENT
entities are set out below:
2020 2019
—EB-BHE —ENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
HK$ BT 671 4,053
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

34. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 34. BFEBE
2020 2019
—E-BF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Arising from government grants: JRE B FHEBIS
Current liability TENEE
(included in other payables (GFAE MR FRIE X
and accruals) FEEFE ) 2,079 2,319
Non-current liability IEREBEE 28,383 27,297
30,462 29,616
The government subsidies received related to the WS mBpeREWEREYE -
acquisition of property, plant and equipment in the PRC. MEREZEER ZREERAE
The amount has been treated as deferred income. The FEWA o 3% sRIAN MR & B (L 5T 8
amount is transferred to income on a systematic basis AFHANERGHEREWRA - Z
over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. This BUR B B F EHER A 2,079,000
policy has resulted in a credit to income in the current B Z T — N F :2,528,000%
year of HK$2,079,000 (2019: HK$2,523,000). As at 31 T)  R-_BE-_EBFE+-A=+—
December 2020, an amount of HK$30,462,000 (31 B £%30,462,000/87T(—FT—N
December 2019: HK$29,616,000) remains to be F+=ZH=+—H :29,616,000%
amortised. TT) B o
35. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 35, EERBEE AfF
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated REETBRRBREZINNNE - &
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets TEEMEEERBBELDEE -

and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

AT AR BERS M S EERIBLS
EREVAFT

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FERT FET

Deferred tax assets EERIBEE (1,333) (1,940)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMRIEBE 42,876 69,518
41,543 67,578
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35. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 35. EEHELEE A& H)
(continued)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) NTERAFERBEFENDE
recognised and movements thereon during the current REZELEMBEEBE(EE) ARHE
and prior years: BE)
Undistributable Timing  Inventories
profits of difference  provisions/ Accelerated
Intangible  subsidiaries/ Government ECL  onrevenue salary tax Tax
assets associate grants provision  recognition payable depreciation loss Total
i} P74
NG BHEE KEEIN  FEEE/ iz

BVEE A2REN BARYE  BESF  BEEE EGFE BRFE BUEBR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TER TEL TAT TEL TET TEL TET

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF
—A—R 23,910 42,833 (4,906) (1,799) 8,867 (540) - - 68,365

(Credit) charge to profit (3 A) 3k 1E%

orloss (7,020 22,163 378 #19) (847) 170 2726 674) 16,477
Reversal upon payment A 1 4 5[l - (16,408) - - - - - - (16,408)
Exchange differences (BN Z& - (788) 86 121 (152) (93) (40) 10 (856)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NE

+-E=+-8 16,890 47,800 (4,442 2,097) 7,868 463) 2686 064 67578
(Credit) charge to profit (3t ) #1185

orloss (6418 14878 274 745 (3.207) (571) 2379 668 8748
Reversal upon payment A3 4 E [l - (36,851) - - - - - - (36,851)
Exchange differences B 2% - 1,857 (199) (95) 330 (146) 325 @ 2,068
At31December 2020  R-F-TFE

+=ZA=t-H 10,472 27,684 (4,367) (1,447) 4,991 (1,180) 5,390 - 41,543
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35. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$2,532,000 (2019: HK$6,871,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$Nil (2019:
HK$4,427,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$2,532,000 (2019: HK$2,444,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$2,444,000 that
will expire in 2024 and losses of HK$88,000 that will
expire in 2025 (2019: HK$2,444,000 will expire in 2024).

35. EEBHIBEEE B&E#®)

RIEBR AEBBERBAFIE
582,582,000 L (=& — L F ¢
6,871,000 7T ) A] K S5 R OB F)
EREEERSBT(ZT—h&F:
4,427,000 87T ) EREEH B E E -
R oK B0 FI ROR £ A TEOR - I
FER T 2,582,000 L (ZE—NF -
2,444,0008 7T) RIELEHIBEE
RERBEBEEEEERN =21
F 2| HA K 5148 2,444,000 78 7T K 15 °
—ZT— ﬂ¢ FI B Y /&5 18 88,0008 7T

( — T — A 1 2,444,00078 7T &
—-Z _EEﬂJH‘E)
36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. A
Number of Nominal
shares value
5 & B H{E
HK$'000
FET

Authorised: SERE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each
At 1 January 2019, 31 December

TR EE 0.005 78 JT Y T AR
R-_ZE—NAF—HF—B8 -

2019 and 31 December 2020 E-NF+= H
_+ AR=ZZE=FF
+-—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each &A% {E 0.005 7 7T HY & 38 A%
At 1 January 2019, 31 December E\_ Z—-NF—H—H-
2019 and 31 December 2020 —hF+=A
_+ ABR=ZZE-FF
+ZA=+—H 1,567,884,634 7,839
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 37. RIREFFE

The Group participants a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under control of a trustee. The Group
contributes lower of 5% of relevant payroll costs or
HK$1,500 per person to the Scheme, which is matched
by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Company’s subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$7,751,000 (2019: HK$15,094,000) represents
contributions paid or payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the local government in the
PRC lowered the rate of social insurance contribution so
as to relieve the Covid-19 impact.

AEBAEBMBEAEAKEEZN
BHERAEEETE - FFEEERER
EEEESDHERE  YHETLAE
ENESER ASEREEER
FAEBEFH AT IEIB5%31,500
BT BEBSEL S -

AEBRTENEE ST EBFD
BREERAKBHAIOXE - K
AEMBARIABRFEETAD
fEERRENETE - LR R
B  AKREFLFENEEER
RIRBEETEEL AT -

ERERERMNER7,751,000%8
TL(=Z— A% : 15,094,000 T )
FEAE B TR BRI A L R A
R8I B E R s AR B A
R BE_T-_TEF+_A=1+—
BIEFE FREHBFRELS
RIS HE 30K DA LR R Covid-19H) 228 o
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXMEEEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank borrowings and lease liabilities, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

AEBEEHEER  UBERAKE
MERAIASERLS  WEBEL
B MEREHRERAREESR
RAER BEFUK AEEH

BEERASTE -

AEENEARNRBERRERSFHE(E
RIRTEEMEERE MEHAT
EREEEEB) RARRHEA AR
DR (EPBEEEHTRA M
) o

ARBEZTEMELENRE - 1F
BEEZN D ARREFE
EREARANEEIERE AR
MR o AEEBRIBESHZZ -
BRI - BITHRA AT
HESABRBEEHRFHELE
RBEARRE -

39. £€MTH

a. SRIANER

2020 2019
=EF-FF FNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at amortised cost & 44 A5 BE R £ R & B 868,062 789,648
Financial liabilities cEaE
Amortised cost B8R A 663,438 531,891

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

a.

Categories of financial instruments (continued)
The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management of the
Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

() Currency risk
The functional currency of the Group’s
principal subsidiaries is RMB. While most of
the Group’s operations are transacted in the
functional currency of the respective group
entities, the Group undertakes certain
transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group currently does not have
hedging policy in respect of the foreign
currency risk. However, the management
closely monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

39. €T R (&)

a.

EMTANER (F)
AEBNI2SRIABEE
7 FEWRIR « EAth JR UL FRIA
EHEMBITER - RITER KL
Re HPENRE HME
BESERN AN EFNCIE 2230 e
BENIE - |RITBEERRITE
X oZEeMIANFEER
MM EARE ZFe/T
HifF AR erm SRR (5
B R A RER) - FEERR
FMOREE TR - M EDRE
% EE R EBRE N T3 o AN
SEEREEERLREEZER
% DATE R BE I B A 250 B EX
B E R o

Wi EkE
) EERE
AEBFZMBRARNY

EEBEABARE - @R
KA EHBAZERHE
ERMBEEBETR
5 REBETE TN
SNESHERNR 5 - A& H
B B3 A B SN E R AY
HHRRE - AT BEE
Y BRI SME R R - A
R B B 5 E RS
EE [ B2 o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. TR %)
a. Categories of financial instruments (continued) a. 2RIBWER (&)
Market risk (continued) miEER (&)
() Currency risk (continued) ) EEmEpE(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign RRE BB RE - A&
currency denominated monetary assets and BAINEETENEKEE
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting FESaEREENT :

date are as follows:

2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Assets BE
HK$ BT 4,647 6,536
uUs$ ETT 80,152 3,886
Liabilities =F
HK$ BT 295 201,449
us$ o 3,558 -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Market risk

b.

(i)

Currency risk

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency
of HK$ and USS$.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 6% (2019: 2%) increase and
decrease in the RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies, respectively. 6% (2019: 2%)
sensitivity rate represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 6% (2019: 2%) change
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes bank balances, receivables
or payables, bank overdrafts and borrowings
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where
RMB strengthens against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 6% (2019: 2%) weakening of
RMB against the relevant foreign currencies,
there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit.

39. &M I A
THEREENEEREE

b.

miEER

) EERE
BURE DT
REBFEARBITIE

TEERR -

TRFARYE BN
BEHEBERIZAEKR(ZE
—NF 2%)BBERT
REEBNBRBEDNT - &K
REHEewn(ZZT— N
F:2%)REREEREHIN

HERT

B B AT

it - BUREDEBIEINA
SNEFHERMREEEE IR
B ¥R ®EHRIZ%
“TNEF  2%) INEE
REBHEHBE - U
Eor BIRRITHER &
Yo SRR B e A FRIR A MR
TEXRMEE(AYESR
BN EHETE) ° T
EBERR AR AN
BIHER - BRBR 8 M
G0 - W AR N EE
SNEE B BE%( —F — N

F:2%)

C EENE

BHRTE -

2020 2019
—E-TFF TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET

Profit for the year FE 5 A
HK$ BT (218) 3,255
Us$ ETT (3,837) (65)

Note: This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to
outstanding bank balances, receivables, payables,
bank overdrafts and borrowings in HK$ and US$ at
end of the reporting period.

iR R EEREMEHR
AT R ETTRHER R B
RITHEER - FEMGRIR - JBAY

IE

CRITEXREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and
bank borrowings (see notes 29 and 32
respectively). The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate and RMB Benchmark Loan Rates arising
from the Group’s HK$ and RMB denominated
bank overdrafts and borrowings.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its corresponding fixed-rate
pledged bank deposits, bank borrowings and
lease liabilities (see notes 29, 32 and 33 for
details) amounting to HK$14,523,000 (2019:
HK$9,476,000), HK$411,206,000 (2019:
HK$55,875,000) and HK$1,293,000 (2019:
HK$4,905,000) respectively. The management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

39. €M I A

THEREENEEREE(E)

mISEE(E)

(i)

T = 2
RZZE—-—NF+=A
=+—H  NEBEMEE
ReEmEMNERRETEHR
FEBITHEBLIRITEER
(PRI R WiE20K%32) F
e AEBNREREF
R EZEEPHREAEE
LABTT R A RMEETHERTT
BEXREBENEBRITRH
E¥RBFAERARBER
BRI o

REBNAAEBEMNER

ZHEHAEEREEEX
EEFRITER - RITE
ELRHEAEGGFERMW
i£29-32%33) ' B Rl A
14,523,000 t( = =
— N 19,476,000
JC) ~ 411,206,00078 7T( =
T — L F : 55,875,000/
7T )} 1,293,000/ T ( —
T — L F : 4,905,000/
TL) c BEEBEEBRUERE
B R E KT RE R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

b.

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates on variable-rate bank borrowings as at
31 December 2019. The analysis is prepared
assuming the variable-rate bank borrowings
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. As the
management considers the exposure to
interest rate risk in relation to bank balances is
insignificant due to the low level of bank
interest rate, bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis. A 100 basis points increase
or decrease is used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2019 would have
decreased/increased by HK$1,693,000. This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2019.

39. &M I A
b. SREMEENBEERBER(E)

misEkE ()
(i) FIFREE (&)
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group.
The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily
attributable to trade receivables, contract assets,
other receivables, bank balances and pledged bank
deposits. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets, except that the
credit risks associated with certain trade receivables
are backed by bills issued by reputable financial
institutions.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets and contract assets under ECL
model. Information about the Group’s credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable,
are summarised as below:

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade
receivables and contract assets, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limit, credit approval, and
makes periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
receivables based on historical settlement records,
reasons for extended repayment period and past
experience. The Group only accepts bills issued or
guaranteed by reputable PRC banks if trade
receivables are settled by bills and therefore the
management of the Group considers the credit risk
arising from the endorsed or discounted bills is
insignificant. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 17%
(2019: 15%) and 45% (2019: 41%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the printing and manufacturing of
cigarettes packages and related materials segment.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on the trade
receivables and contract assets individually or
collectively. Except for debtors with internal credit
ratings graded as P4, P5 and P6, which are
assessed for impairment individually, the remaining
trade receivables and contract assets are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to repayment histories for recurring
customers and current past due exposure for the
new customers.

39. &M I A

b.

EREREENBEERBEK(E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits

In order to minimise the credit risk on other
receivables, the management of the Group makes
periodic individual assessments on the recoverability
of receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience and forward-looking
information. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on other receivables
individually.

The credit risk on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by PRC credit rating
agencies or state-owned banks located in the PRC.

In determining the ECL for bank balances and
pledged bank deposits, the management of the
Group has taken into account the estimated default
loss rates in reference to the international credit
rating agency and forward-looking information, as
appropriate. There had been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. The
management of the Group has estimated the ECL
basing on the carrying amounts of bank balances
and pledged bank deposits at the end of the
reporting period multiplying the estimated default
loss rates. The Group has considered the
consistently low historical default rate, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits is insignificant.

39. €T R (&)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

EREMEENBEERBEK(E)
FERBR N BERNE ()

AW HIERITHE R B
HIRTTIEH

FERKE b EBERN =
ERk - AEEEEEREE
SLEHRLE - BELRRATE
B R E B WO IR R A] LR
Bl 1 E 1T BRI R - REEIR
BRAEEBEEEAHEE
Wk BT T B BB E R

RITERNEERBRER - R
R F 75 %S IF,\ AFAR
BB AEEFRERMRT
KA BBEART

EEERTESR M ETRT
TF R FEHE E R R KE
I”QIEJ’E.#&R%I =1
BR 2= NIl EEIEﬁﬂ(lZHLFH)
ZEFHENBELRR - FHEA
B & R L/(?K]Iﬁzﬁﬁ%i*
me REEEREERBNRSE
HIRRITER LB EHRITTF
*hzﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬁé,%’ﬂé%%z
MEtEMEERR - AEED
%Jﬁﬁffﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ_iii’]?
ﬂﬂ%ﬁ%nﬁp%ﬁﬁ’%liﬂa g
RITERLREEFRITFERE
EE’MDQ\H@AITEK



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

b.

(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 56%
(2019: 85%) of the total bank balances was due
from the three largest banks.

The Group is also exposed to the concentration on
geographic segment of the PRC. At 31 December
2020, approximately 100% (2019: 99%) of the
Group’s trade and other receivables are arising from
counterparties whose principal place of operations

is the PRC.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

39. &M I A

b.

EREREENBEERBEK(E)
FERBRNBERNE ()

Hub Y IERITAE RSB
HRTTI750 ()
AEBEBEFEESFTRAR - R
THBBEENE(ZE— N
F : 85%) KB = KIRTT o

REE AT R D EBEPE
FRAORR - R _FF
+-—A=Z+—8 A£EEYH
100% (ZZF—NLF : 99%) &
5 R E A EWFRIAR B AR

REREEMFNETFT
R B 0N ERE B EL R R ALY
HEFEATER

Internal Trade receivables/
credit rating Description contract assets
R EE R RS ERRWTE EREE
P1 The counterparty has a low risk of default, Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
refers to state-owned cigarette companies and
receivables backed by bank bills
P1 HBFEAEORBRE EEEEELAR 2HBEHEEEE - ROREERE
RITRIB X FFH R R
P2 Debtor frequently repays within due dates and  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
has no past due amounts and the length of
customer relationship is more than three years
with no default history
P2 EBAREHEIMENEER  WERAHFE - 2PEHREEEHE - REREERE
EFBERRBB=FATEEN
P3 Debtor frequently repays after due dates and  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
has past due amounts, or the length of
customer relationship is less than three years
P3 EBARFEINHERERIARSTIE - 2PEHREEHE — REBEERE

IEPHERRRIN=F
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits (continued)

Internal
credit rating

A ERE B R

Description
it

39. €M I A

ERAREENBEERBE(E)
FERBR N BERNE ()

AW HIERITHE R B
HIRTTIFH ()

Trade receivables/
contract assets

ESBURRRAREE

P4

P4

P5

P5

P6

P6

P7

P7
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Debtor with significant outstanding past

due balances which expects to be fully

settled within one year

BHER—FABBENEAREEDH
FEERIVETS A

Debtor with significant outstanding past
due balances which settles from time to
time and expect to be fully settled within

two years.
PR EE I TR E NEBREN

BAKRBERBMEHRNEBLA

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BREBRNEELREERE

There is evidence indicating that the

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and

the Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery

FRBRETEB AR REM BN
MRS B | E B HI 2 Rl m R

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

2HIRHEERR - RLREERE

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

2HRBEEER - ALREERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
FHEHEEEE - HREERE

Amount is written off

SR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s trade receivables, contract assets,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash
and other receivables which are subject to ECL
assessment:

Financial assets at amortised costs

39. EMTA4#)
b. EREAREBWEERBE(E)

FERRRBERG(E)

H it e HIERiT#E B IF
HIRTT5A ()
TRFVAETEMEEER
FHEASEE 5 B WA
BREE BERRITER
RITAEER N IR & A K HoAf FE UL
RENEERR

B IER AR &

External Internal 2020 2019
credit credit —E-EE —E-hEF
rating rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount  Gross carrying amount
HHEE  RHEE
BE BE 12BAR2HEAEERE REAE ERaE
Notes HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
izt THET TER FET FEL
Trade receivables 25 N/A P1 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impared) 396,152 448,905
BHRINIE TEm P1 2HRHEEFB(RUBEERE)
P2 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impared) 85,235 25,384
P2 2HRAEEFB(RUBEERE)
P3 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impared) 30,668 79,423
P3 2HRAEEFB(RUBEERE)
P4 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 3,650 6,812
P4 2HRAEEFE(RUBEERE)
P6 Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 6,071 521,776 11,060 571,584
P6 2 HAEBEEER(LRERERE)
Contract assets 26 N/A P1 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impared) 103,360 165,719
aHEE TER P1 2HRBREFE (RUBEERE)
P2 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impared) 7,869 4,131
P2 2HRBEEFE(RUBEERE)
P3 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impared) 1,642 469
P3 2HRBEEFE(RUBEERE)
P4 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) - 113,371 536 170,855
P4 2HRBEEFE(RUBEERE)
Pledged bank deposits 29 AAA N/A 12-month ECL 14,523 14,523 9,476 9,476
BERROER TEA  12EARSBEESE
Bank balances 29 AAA N/A 12-month ECL 315,246 315,246 200,888 200,888
RiTEER T™ER  12EAEBEEEE
Other receivables 27 N/A (Note 1) 12-month ECL 25,884 25,884 20,789 20,789
H it EIHIE TER (FrsE1)  12[ABBEEES
Refundable rental deposits N/A (Note 1) 12-month ECL - - 664 664
TRERERS TER (1)  12EREHEESSE
* The rating is originated from PRC credit rating agencies. * FEARR B R B E B R AR o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. At
31 December 2020, these amounts are not past due or
they have no fixed repayment terms.

2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

Collective assessment — internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers.
The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and
contract assets which are assessed based on
collective assessment as at 31 December 2020
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). Debtors
with significant outstanding and long aged balances
or credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts of
HK$9,721,000 and HK$nil in aggregate for trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31 December
2020 (2019: HK$17,872,000 and HK$536,000)
were assessed individually.

39. €M I A
b.
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GEE
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HERAREDREEN - KT
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

39. &M I A
b. 2HEREENEERBX(E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R R ET (&)
(continued)
Collective assessment — internal credit rating RS — NESIE BV (&)
(continued)
Gross carrying amount FRE#EE
2020
—E-EBHF
Average Trade Contract
loss rate  receivables assets
Internal credit rating ~ AZPEEFTR THYEEER EHEKWFIE BHNEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
P1 P1 0.04% 396,152 103,860
P2 P2 1.94% 85,235 7,869
P3 P3 4.18% 30,668 1,642
512,055 113,371
2019
—T-NEF
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating WEB(EE AT AR FHEBRX BHRENIE BREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
P1 P1 0.03% 448,905 165,719
P2 P2 0.77% 25,384 4,131
P3 P3 2.64% 79,423 469
553,712 170,319
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —ZE —FF+_F=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Collective assessment — internal credit rating

(continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical settlement records, internal credit rating,
the external credit rating data and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated. The
contract assets have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
type of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for

contract assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group provided HK$2,127,000 (2019:
HK$2,141,000) net impairment allowance for trade
receivables and provided HK$43,000 (2019:
reversed HK$84,000) net impairment allowance for
contract assets, based on the assessment by
individually or collectively for those credit-impaired
debtors or those debtors with significant

outstanding and long aged balances.

The Group assessed the loss allowances for
pledged bank deposits, other receivables and bank
balances on 12-month ECL basis. The management
of the Group considers the bank balances that are
deposited with the financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets.
The management of the Group considers bank
balances are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-
rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance was

considered as insignificant.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. eRT R %)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. SEEAMEENBEEREE(E)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R R ET (&)
(continued)
Collective assessment — internal credit rating RS — NESIE BV (&)
(continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued) RERE(E)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime TRETBRBEBCEITERES
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables ERFIEEREHEHEEE
under the simplified approach. BHEE o

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HRHEE 20FRAGE
B (RER BE (R

FERE) FEHE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET FET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—A—H 7,837 4,152 11,989
Changes due to financial —Z-NF—HF—H
instruments recognised REMIA
as at 1 January 2019: IR )
— Transfer to credit impaired - EESHREERE (60) 60 -
— Impairment losses recognised ~ — BHERRIEEE - 7,017 7,017
— Impairment losses reversed - BREHESSE (7,294) - (7,294)
New financial assets originated MEANSHEE 2,418 - 2,418
Exchange adjustment B 5 % (85) (169) (254)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+-A=+—H 2,816 11,060 13,876
Changes due to financial H-Z_TF—-A—-H
instruments recognised REPIA
as at 1 January 2020: R &
— Transfer to credit impaired - BEENREENE (52) 52 -
— Impairment losses recognised ~ — B RRREER - 2,246 2,246
— Impairment losses reversed — BEORESSE (2,235) (353) (2,588)
New financial assets originated MEENSHEE 2,469 - 2,469
Write off 38 - (6,973) (6,973)
Exchange adjustment [ 174 39 213
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-EF
+ZA=+—H 3,172 6,071 9,243
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

39. €M I A

Financial risk management objectives and b. £REREENBEERBK(E)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment B8RS EBRESE(E)
(continued)
Collective assessment — internal credit rating ST — NEFEEFTAR ()
(continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued) BERTHEE(8)
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there EHEEBNBREBKABIRE
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe B B IR & K% 4 R Ui (8] B B (17
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect MEM ARS8 E AR E
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed B AEEBHREE S E
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy WHIE - NEEDHEUEZETT
proceedings. The Group has taken legal action BAEE AR KT - fiEme
against the debtors to recover the amount due. W E 5 W TEE H R &l
None of the trade receivables that have been written HITIEE) ©
off is subject to enforcement activities.
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables B o EIWHIBGEREEEE
are mainly due to: ZRE :
2020 2019
b g 223 —TNE
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in lifetime (decrease) in lifetime
ECL ECL
2HENEERE 2HEMEERE
i/ (hd) #m/CAd)
Not credit- Credit-  Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired impaired impaired
AEH B R R
FEHE fFERE FE6E FERE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TER THL AT
One trade debtor witha gross ~ —JEIRMEEE
carrying amount of 2,086,000 % 7T
HK$2,086,000 (2019: (ZZE—n&:
HK$6,973,000) defaulted and ~ 6,973,000787C) 24
transferred to credit-impaired ~ WERE HBREERE
08 BN (52) 2,208 (60) 7,077
Write off s - (6,973) - -
Settlement of trade debtors EREAEE
graded as P4 and P6 373,0008 7T
with a gross carrying amount  (ZZ— A5 :
of HK$373,000 42,176,000/ 7T)
(2019: HK$42,176,000) TR EPATPGHY)
B RKER - (353) (4,392) -
New trade receivables with gross BRE #2(&
carrying amount of 507,704,000/ 7T
HK$507,704,000 (ZE—NF:
(2019: HK$543,397,000) 543,397,000 % 7T) #)
B HEWTIE 2,469 - 2,418 -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Collective assessment — internal credit rating
(continued)
The following table shows reconciliation of loss

39. &M I A
b. SREMEENBEERBER(E)

FERBRNBERNE ()
BTG — NEMEERFAR ()

TRETEHIAANEERR

allowances that has been recognised for contract B R EIER -
assets.
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HENGEE 2HEHEER
BECRER BE(HR
EER{E) EER{E) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET
As at 1 January 2019 R-F—-hn&—H—H 217 - 217
Changes due to financial H-F-NF—HA—H

instruments recognised BALRIA

as at 1 January 2019; MR EE :

— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESR 217) - (217)
New contract assets originated HEANAHNEE 133 - 133
Exchange adjustment B AR () - (2)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE

+-ZA=1+—H 131 - 131
Changes due to financial H-Z-TF—-H—H

instruments recognised ALBIA

as at 1 January 2020: R &

— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESE (131) = (131)
New contract assets originated HEENAHNEE 174 - 174
Exchange adjustment [ 10 - 10
As at 31 December 2020 RZZT_ZTF

+-ZA=1+—H 184 - 184
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Collective assessment — internal credit rating

(continued)

The following table shows reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for other

receivables.

39. €M I A
THEREENEEREE(E)

FERBR N BERNE ()
BTG — NEMEERFAR ()
R BN E A U SRR R
B MmN HE -

12-month ECL

(not credit-
impaired)
1218 A
BHREEEE
(RHEH
E8RE)
HK$’000
FAET

As at 1 January 2019 R-ZE—hF—H—H 257
Changes due to financial instruments —E-NF-A—HERSRE

recognised as at 1 January 2019 TEMmMHIRES

— Impairment losses reversed — BB EREEE (207)
New financial assets originated FEENSMEE 110
Exchange adjustment ME B 3)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NFE+ZA=+—H 157
Changes due to financial instruments —ETF-A—B®ER

recognised as at 1 January 2020 TR T A IR EE

— Impairment losses reversed — BB EREEE (157)
New financial assets originated FEENCMEE 254
Exchange adjustment ME 5, B 15
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF+A=+—H 269
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group has available unutilised bank borrowings
facilities of approximately HK$696,663,000 (2019:
HK$621,049,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for other
financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

39. &M I A

b.

THEREENEEREE(E)

RBE SRR
REBRBDESARE  KAKHE
SETERY KR MRS FE
MEFSEEEER BT EMK
¥ URAREENEERKRES
WHERSRENSNTE - &
BESEZERTEENDAE
W WHELR B T R o

REBEKBRITERABEIERD
BeRBR - N_ZE_ZTE+_F
=+—HB  AEETEREHER
HABRTEEREDN R
696,663,000/ 7T ( = & — JL4F -
621,049,000/ 7T) °

TRFAVABERBENRIGRS
WHIRR - IARBIAAEBARER
TREBENEFASNEENESR
BEAMRRSRERE - At
TRABENINHEDREGEE

BEEMEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39. €M I A

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. SEEAMEENBEEREE(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRAMR(E)
The table includes both interest and principal cash XEBRENERASEERE -
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating W F SR ABEEFE - BRI
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from SRR mEAROF R ER
interest rate at the end of the reporting period. 1Fe
Liquidity tables MEBER R
Weighted On demand Total
average or less undiscounted Carrying
interest rate than 1 year 1-2 years cash flows amounts
g BEXRS FAFBERS
FigFI% -5 —-EWE RERE BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FEL THEL FEL
2020 —ECZF
Trade payables BHRNHE - 214,037 - 214,037 214,037
Other payables Hib R - 35,711 - 35,711 35,711
Amounts due to non-controlling  FEHFHE 22 B FE A%
interests of subsidiaries BRFE - 2,484 = 2,484 2,484
Bank borrowings HBIEE
— fixed rate — BRI 4.28 498,787 - 428,787 411,206
Lease liabilities HEER 4.31 994 349 1,343 1,293
682,013 349 682,362 664,731
2019 —E-NF
Trade payables BHRNHIE - 226,288 - 226,288 226,288
Other payables Hi e 50R - 33218 - 33218 33,218
Bank overdrafts BTEX 3.80 2,831 - 2,831 2,728
Amounts due to non-controlling  FE BB FIZEEE AR
interests of subsidiaries TExFa - 8,290 - 8,290 8,290
Bank borrowings BIEE
— floating rate - ZEFI% 4.46 200,537 - 209,537 200,587
— fixed rate — EEF% 435 58,306 - 58,306 55,875
Lease liabilities HEAE 4.36 4,440 601 5,041 4,905
542,910 601 543,511 531,891
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. eRT R %)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. TEMIANAAEBETE
instruments
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value FZBAREETENHRER
measurements
Structured
deposits
EBMEER
HK$’000
FHIT
At 1 January 2019 R_ZE-NF—HA—H -
Purchase of structured deposits BALBMETK 1,020,654
Net gain on structured deposits EREME RS FE 1,896
Redemption of structured deposits BBl BT (1,022,550)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NAF+A=+—H -
Purchase of structured deposits BALBMETR 116,816
Net gain on structured deposits AR R EEE 132
Redemption of structured deposits FEEIR e ES /N (116,948)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZTF+_A=+—H -

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
this year.

Of the total gains or losses for the period included in
profit or loss, HK$132,000 (2019: HK$1,896,000)
relates to structured deposits. Fair value gains or
losses on structured deposits are realised and are
included in “other gains and losses”.

EREEBARBEESE -

FTABEMERKG S EIB AT
182,000 L (ZE— NLF -
1,896,000/ 7T) & E T B
e BRUETERN AR BEKE
HEBEBIE - Wit A [HAal
mREE] -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+ A =+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €M I A

c. Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments that are
recorded at amortised cost
The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values. Such fair values have been determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis,
with most significant inputs being the discount rate
that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

40. OPERATING LEASES 40.
The Group as lessor
All of the properties held for rental purposes have
committed lessees for the next 1 and 5 years
respectively.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as

C.

ERMITANAABEE(E)

BBERATHENERTAND
nEE
ARAEFRRNEA M HRE
RBERATHENEREENRS
BEEMNKREEREEA(EEE
H o RFRABEIREARE
EBRAZTERSAOITEE -
REZNBABERSRARRE
FhHEERBOITEE -

KEHE

AEBEBHBEA
FrEH#ERERENYED BN ARKEKA
F NS FEATAEM o

HENSEEKEENKNT :

follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Within one year —F R 1,494 2,015
In the second year FE_F 1,430 1,341
In the third year BE=F 1,430 1,341
In the fourth year Euigas 1,430 1,341
In the fifth year EFRF 1,430 1,341
After five years hF & 1,430 1,341
8,644 8,720
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41.

42.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. EREIE
2020 2019
—E-FF  ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Capital expenditure in respect HRIREE - BE R
of the acquisition of property, plant  FZEHIE ETLIMHERR
and equipment contracted for but e M BmREEN
not provided in the consolidated BARRX
financial statements 76,396 95,515
PLEDGE OF OR RESTRICTIONS ON 42. EEIKITHR S
ASSETS
Pledge of assets EEER
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts RE|ERR  NEEEFUERET
of the assets pledged by the Group to secure the bank AEEMRITEENEEREDEBENT ¢
borrowings granted to the Group are as follow:
2020 2019
—EBIERF  EThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Bank deposits RITHER 14,523 9,476
Restrictions on assets BEERS
In addition, lease liabilities of approximately oh  RZEZFEF+-A=+—H -
HK$1,293,000 (2019: HK$4,905,000) are recognised BEREREEEE41,293,000%F (=
with related right-of-use assets of approximately T — L4 1 4,905,000 7T ) 3 K& {F A
HK$1,272,000 (2019: HK$4,853,000) as at 31 December BEEEM,272,0008 T (ZF—1F -
2020. The lease agreements do not impose any 4,853,000 7T) c BRI AFMFHE
covenants other than the security interests in the leased BEMERERI - HEWZE TN
assets that are held by the lessor and the relevant leased FR 2% BEEEEENTEHE
assets may not be used as security for borrowing BEER -
purposes.

2020 F 3 BHITRERERAR]

221



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —ZE —FF+_F=+—HILFE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 43. @& EBIfIEE B ENEE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREFVIAE @Fﬁ?ﬁﬁ%@)ﬁﬁ?iﬁ
arising from financing activities, including both cash and ENEs  pERE MRS E
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing %ﬂéé@)ﬁﬁ?iﬁﬁﬁfﬁim&ﬁix
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future ReERHEAEBENGABEERER
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated NERAMEEYELARSINARE -
statement of cash flows as cash flow from financing
activities.
Interest
payable
Amounts (included in
due to non- other
controlling Purchase payables
interests of Bank Dividends consideration Lease and
subsidiaries  borrowings payables payables liabilities accruals) Total
ERFIE
TR (Gt ARAt
DEFER At ERAHER
BETE RITEE EfRE BERE HEBE  EER) EoHY

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TAT TET TAT TAT TET

At 1 January 2019 R=F-NF—-A—AH 8,154 620,084 - 12,776 9,880 1,189 652,083
Financing cash flow (Note) BEBS (W) 092 (362,342) RETH (15089 (4,152) - (383800
Consideration for acquisition of WE—-HHBAR
non-controlling interest of FERERNHRE
a subsidiary - - - 3,618 - - 3,618
Changes in fair value AREEZ - - - (1,190) - - (1,190)
New lease contracts HHRERN - - - - 864 - 864
Early termination of lease contracts 1R AI#R IFFEAH) - - - - (1,667) - (1,667)
Finance costs BARA - - - - 287 19,391 19,678
Interest paid 2RF 8 - - - - (287) (19,532 (19,819
Dividends declared BERRE - - 2,574 - - - 2574
Exchange difference EREE (156) (1,280) - [17) (20) 910) (2,537)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-nE
+-A=1+-H 8,290 256,462 - - 4,905 138 269,795
At1 January 2020 RZZ-TF—-f—H 8,200 256,462 - - 4,905 138 269,795
Financing cash flow (Note) BERST () (5,998) 130,989 (299,936) - (3,840) - (178,785)
Modification of lease contract HEAHBR - - - - 412 - 42
Early termination of lease contracts  2RT&IFREA X - - - - (342) - (342)
Finance costs BERA - - - - 118 20,570 20,688
Interest paid BRFIE - - - - (118) (20,187) (20,305)
Dividends declared EERRE - - 299,936 - - - 299,936
Exchange difference ERER 192 23,755 - - 158 32 24,137
At 31 December 2020 RZB_ZF
+ZA=+-8 2,484 411,206 - - 1,293 553 415,536
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 43. st EZEfiEL B ENEEE)

44.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Note: The cash flows represent (i) the proceeds from and repayment of
bank borrowings; (i) payment of dividends; (jii) repayment to non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries ; (iv) consideration paid for
acquisition of additional equity interest in a subsidiary; (v)
consideration paid for acquisition of a subsidiary in previous year
and (vi) repayments of leases liabilities.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group extended the lease term for
the use of leased properties. On the effective date of
modification, the Group recognised HK$412,000 of right-
of-use asset and HK$412,000 lease liability.

During the current year, there were reduction to right-of-
use assets of HK$334,000 (2019: HK$1,647,000) and
lease liabilities of HK$342,000 (2019: HK$1,667,000) due
to certain lease contracts were early terminated.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a new lease agreement for the use of leased
properties for 3 years. On the lease commencement, the
Group recognised HK$864,000 of right-of-use asset and
HK$864,000 lease liability.

44,

BEE - REMIBORITEENATSRIBERER © (i)
IRAS RS, (i) R B X B SRR AR A s B 5K
(iv) Y s — I BT BB A R RR SN AR 0 2
MHRE: v E—FERBE—RHEARN
ENRE: RviBEEEER -

BEXAEEAERS
FR-AEBLERFERAEEDENTA
Hi o IMERTE B - NEBERE
FAiEEEA20008 T LEEEE
412,000/ 7T °

RAFE  ARREAIIKIEETHES
7y - (AR EE R 2 334,000 T (=
T— N 1,647,00080) LEESE
&R 1 342,0008 (=& — N F
1,667,000/87T) °

HE-_T-hFE+_A=+—HLHF
B AEERERAEEMET LAH
=FFHEERE  NEERBR
7N 5 B 1 SR A B & 864,000 78 7T
N FAE & {&864,000# T °
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45 BERFRS
B A B BHRE E B D P EES -
AEERGEHNX S REBNT -

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions
and balances with related parties:

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related company
The Group had the following significant transactions
with related party during the year:

(a)

HEEQRANRS
RAFERN  REBHETTIIE
RKEAETRS

2020 2019
—B-8F _—T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Company controlled by a HAARR—HEEZH
director of the Company: AT :
Purchase of printing and packing B & E[Jal &2 £ 2 # 52
machineries 11,942 10,230
An associate: —RBE AT -
Sales of printing and HENR R ERBERE
manufacturing cigarette SR
packages and related materials 19,343 56,263

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and in
note 28. In addition, deposits amounting to
HK$389,000 (2019: HK$5,006,000) were paid to a
related party controlled by a director of the
Company for purchase of property, plant and
equipment, which is included in “Rental and other
deposits paid”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 — L —FF+_H=+—HIEFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 45. BER R 5 (#)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year was as follows:

(c) FEEEASHME
RAFE EFEMHEMETEEE
ABHE T

2020 2019

—E-FF TR

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Short-term benefits SRR 7,683 6,366
Post-employment benefits BERL 2R A 127 143
7,810 7,009

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has received a Notice of Arbitration from Shenzhen Court
of International Arbitration that Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration has accepted the application (the
“Application”) for arbitration filed by Claimant. According
to the Application, the Claimant requests for the payment
of: (i) a fund raising reward of about HK$108.9 million and
the related overdue interest since April 2008; (i) a service
fee of RMB2.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,305,000) and the related overdue interest since
July 2007; (jii) legal fees incurred of about HK$47.0 million
and RMBO0.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,037,000); and (iv) arbitration fee, in connection with
an appointment contract and another agreement entered
into between, among other party, a subsidiary of the
Company and the Claimant in April 2005.

46.

EERIBTRABNMEHE
MEzEegERBEARR LTS

BEET o

ZAREE
HE_T—+F+-_A=+—HLF
€ NEBEERYIBBERPERES
RmEBRA  RRFNBEBRAERE
XERRARENME BB ZH
Bl o BIBEZBE - ARAZRRBIE
m(EFPEIE) ARQR—HEHE AR M
HEAR-_ZEZTRAFMATIHER
EREE—HHEEEZMT)AREL
108,900,000 B LK E A MMM KL E =T
T N\FMA AR AR NS (i)
A E AR 2,000,000 (8 E 74
2,305,000 8 L) WRKEERE -TF
&+ A ARAAE 8 BRI S s (iii) BT
S| BHY A 2 B F #947,000,0007% 7T &
AR ¥ 900,000 7t (18 7 %) 1,037,000
BIT) L R (V) HEE -
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46.

47.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

During the current year, the Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration issued its verdict and ruled the
Company is liable to compensate HK$20,000,000 to the
ex-staff. The directors of the Company consider that all
allegations in the Application are unfounded and without
merits, and the arbitration is invalid. The Company has
applied for cancellation of the arbitration to Shenzhen
Intermediate People’s Court after consultation with its
legal adviser. As advised, the arbitration is invalid due to (i)
the matters in the verdict not falling within the scope of
the arbitration agreement; (ii) Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration has issued a verdict on matters
out of its jurisdiction scope when determining the
compensation amount; (iii) the arbitration procedures
violated the arbitration rules. In this regard, the Group has
categorically defended and challenged all the claims by
the Claimant during the judicial process. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, it is not probable that a
material outflow of resources will be required based on
the legal advice and no provision is considered to be
recognised to the consolidated financial statements
accordingly.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

46.

47.

HAEE W)

RAFE R BR P E B 3 H HOR
WEEARABAMAE LEIE
20,000,000 T ARAIEERR
A BN —IIEIE I E R ERE L
ZRNEE BREBER - EFEH
HOERBERE - ARRRRIIT B R
AREG B FERBEE - B FE
BEY RAKONFETHNFERNE
KRR BENEE: ((EEEHEES
FEE - RYI IR 2B ot A BE F IR B
HHREBLEEEEE (i) (FEEF
ERMEBRL - Btk - AEBER A
EBRETRENRMRERRART
M—tIERR - ARREERL  EN
ERBER FRURELBARERR
B MRRBRAERE M BERRER
TR -

AATMBRRFRE

RNR_E_EFR-_F—-NF+-H
=+—HB  AXRFHRBRARFBFTUOT :

Places of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/

Names of subsidiaries operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities

BRAREH
R/ EREL/ AAABERMREBRITRE/ BREZEREK/
WEAE AR BXibA REEZRRERELAH aRRE FEER
Directly Indirectly
E# B
2020 2019 2020 2019
“E-E2F ZE-NF ZBIEE —T-hF
% % % %

Brilliant Circle British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 = - US$200  Investment holding
Management Limited HEERTES 200%T  REER
(EBERERAR)

Brilliant Circle Group British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$1  Investment holding
Holdings Limited EERLAS 121 REARR

(EMEEERERAR)
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE  47. KA RIMi B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)
Places of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/
Names of subsidiaries operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
BRIREY
R/ EMAL ARABEEMREBRITRE/ BREBRA/
WEARERE EXY RARERRERELH aRRA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
BE &
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIBF ZZ-NE ZBIEE —TNf
% % % %
Brilliant Circle Printing & Packaging  British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$10,000  Investment holding
Limited (BBEDRIBEARAT) RERAES 10,000%T  HEER
Union Virtue International Limited British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 USS$1  Investment holding
(AEERBRRR) RERUEE 12T REBR
Brilliant Circle Development Limited ~ Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$2,000,000  Investment holding
(BHEEERAR) B 2,000,000 REER
Champion League Investment British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited RBERUAEHE 100ET RERR
(BEREERBRAR)
Sanbond Investment Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$100  Investment holding
(HEREBRAR) B 10087 RERRK
HREFMRIRAER AR PRC - - 100.00 100.00 US$12,461,000  Printing of cigarette
(Bengbu Jinhuangshan HE 12,461,005 packages printing of
Rotogravure Printing Company packages and
Limited) decoration matter
research and
development on
printing technology
BEARIR  £%
SBENRI R ELRIBA R
DRI HR S B b 2
FYERDRBRAR PRC - - 100.00 100.00 HK$9,600,000  Investment holding
(Shenzhen Guilian Printing Limited) 9,600,000 HAER
Kecal* PRC - - 100.00 100.00  RMB194,720,000 Printing of cigarette
R # AR packages printing of
194,720,000 packages and
decoration matter
research and
development on
printing technology
EEAXOR A%
SBENRI mEDRIGA R
ENRI SR R 2
ERERBEVEREBRAA" PRC - - 100.00 100.00 1S$3,000,000  Printing of cigarette
(Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Colour HE 3,000,000%7T  packages
Packing Co., Ltd) RIEERE
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE = 47. KX R B A RIS (&)

COMPANY (continued)

Places of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/

Names of subsidiaries operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities

BRAREY
R/ EMAL AARABEEMREBRITRE/ BREBRA/
WEARER RS RARERRERELS aEE FTEER
Directly Indirectly
E# &
2020 2019 2020 2019
SESRE ZERNSF O CRCRE O ZTNF
% % % %

Zhaotong Antong Package Material ~ PRC - - 100.00 100.00 S$1,000,000  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. F 1,000000%7C  laminated paper

(BRZBREHHERAR) AL

Giant Sino Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 60.00 60.00 40.00 40.00 US$100.00  Investment holding
(EEREBERAF) RERUEE 10000%T  RERR

Emperor Great Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 - - US$100.00  Investment holding
(BBREBRRR) RERTES 10000%T  ®ERRK

Fortune Chaser Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$100.00  Investment holding
(RIEBRAR) Bk 100008 AR

Forever Youth limited British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 = - US$100.00  Investment holding
(BBAERAT) RBRIES 10000%T REZK

Right Tech (China) Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$1  Investment holding
(32 (R E) BRAR) 4 187 RERR

Jiangsu HY* PRC - - 70.00 70.00 RMB16,800,000  Sales of RFID products
TEEEF # AE# 16,800,000 SHESERAER

GERREREBRAR" PRC - - 100.00 100.00 RMB50,000,000  Investment holding
(Zhuhai Baozhuangbao # AR®50,000,0007T HEER
Investment Co., Ltd.)

IHeRENHRRERAR PRC - - 100.00 100.00  RMB125,000,000 Sales of RFID products
(Jiangsu Jinxunda 10T F AR%  HESEEAER
Technology Co., Ltd.) 125,000,000 7T

Jinshengcai* PRC - - 100.00 100.00 RMB28,350,000  Manufacturing of paper

SRR # AE#28,350,0007C  packaging materials

HERBEMH

R EBET R LR PRC - - 100.00 100.00 RMB10,000,000  Sales of RFID products
BRAR # AR510,0000007T HESHEAAIER
(Shenzhen Jinlianda Intelligent
Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.)

MM EERBNEERAT® PRC - - - 100.00 RMB840,000  Trading of cigarette

F AR®840,0007c  packages printing of
packages
EEAENRES

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e SRR MEE
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 47. XA G B A A E (&)
COM PANY (continued)

Company incorporated as a sino-foreign equity. DA BPINEERE -

# Company established as foreign invested limited liability # REIKIL BINEREBR AT ©
company.
#* Limited liability company established in the PRC. # R BI I ARDR -

$&¢Hﬂ$‘kzﬁir{£ﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁ B
B R REITEMERES

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during

the year.
48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 48. XA T MBRR R FEHERR
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B R A MRS 1,252,857 1,174,590
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 667 4,001
Rental deposit MHEZe - 664
1,253,524 1,179,255
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b e g 978 172
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE /] 931,651 440,486
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 79,240 4,657
1,011,869 445,315
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals HiENZIE L ETER 177 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries = NGIE e 31,851 217,918
Bank borrowings RITEE - 195,000
Bank overdrafts IRITEX - 2,728
Lease liabilities HEAaE 671 4,053
32,699 419,699
Net current assets REEERE 979,170 25,616
Total assets less current liabilities EE&ZERABE RS 2,232,694 1,204,871
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 48. KRB BRI R FEHEREK (E)
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital and reserves EXRRFEE
Share capital AR 7,839 7,839
Reserves Gt 2,224,855 1,197,032

2,232,694 1,204,871

Movement in the Company’s reserves AT EEE

Dividend Share Other Exchange Retained
reserve premium reserve reserve profits Total
RERE ROSE HoRE EXRE KREEN wet
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$S000 HKE000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET TAET FET

At 1 January 2019 RZE—NEF
—H—H - 4,936,913 (4,185,977) (70,466) 162,121 842,591
Profit and total FERAERZHE
comprehensive income W%
for the year - - ~ (19451) 373892 354,441
Final dividend for 2019 —Z—hEZHEKRE
Proposed (note 16) B2 (fiEE16) 299,936 - - - (299,936) -

At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-HA=+—H~ 299,936 4,936,913 (4,185,977)  (89,917) 236,077 1,197,032

Profit and total FEHEMRE

comprehensive income 2 EZ %8

for the year - - - 33,338 1,294,421 1,327,759
Final dividend for 2020 —E-F g

Proposed (note 16) U(Bﬁzm) 156,789 - - - (156,789) -
Dividends recognised as EEEZJ R IRER S

distribution (note 16) (FiF5E16) (299,936) - - - - (299,936)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-THF

+-A=+-B 156,789 4,936,913 (4,185,977) (56,579) 1,373,709 2,224,855
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Five year financial summary

hEHBERE

(A) RESULTS (A) &

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HLFE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZERF ZTtF T\ ZT-NF ZE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THL THT THL TET TET
(Restated)
(LE5)
Revenue Yz 1,407,209 1,265,515 1,366,763 1,495,833 1,339,439
Operating profit (loss) sl (B1) 270,508 145,770 77,389 191,866 (13,432)
Gain on disposal of HEMBL R
subsidiaries Wzs - - 91,681 - -
Share of profit of associates {5 =2 &)@ Al 86,429 47,334 51,669 41,751 59,304
Share of profit loss) of ajoint A —fIA 4%
venture w i (B8 57 (274) 623 (930) 214
Profit before taxation BRI AR A 356,994 192,830 221,362 232,687 46,086
Taxation BE (69,760)  (50,023)  (46,930)  (55,801)  (87,114)
Profit for the year FRHEA 287,234 142,807 174,432 176,886 8,972
Attributable to: FEfE
Owners of the Company ADBHEEA 285,827 138,025 169,383 175,886 8,915
Non-controliing interests IR 1,407 4,782 5,049 1,000 57
287,234 142,807 174,432 176,886 8,972
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Five year financial summary

A EHBERE

(B) ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (B) EEREE

At 31 December

R+=R=t+-H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“EB-RE ZE-tF ZB-N\F -E-hE CB0BF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TET THL TET FET TERT

TOTAL ASSETS BE#RE 4,158,124 4198506 3934962 3,647,153 3,588,878
TOTAL LIABILITIES afEaE (1,282,964)  (1,217,996)  (1,136,361) (720,977)  (819,051)

2,875,160 2,980,510 2,798,601 2,926,176 2,769,827

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BT A+ HE{GHE :
Owners of the Company ARAHAA 2828968 2,917,632 2,763,663 2,904,301 2,746,446
Non-controlling interests IR 46,192 62,878 34,938 21,875 23,381

2,875,160 2,980,510 2,798,601 2,926,176 2,769,827

Note: The comparative figures are not restated on application of Mzt . BERNERTAMBEREEREIN -
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 for the first time in the year ended 31 HE-Z—N\F+-A=+—HILFE
December 2018 and HKFRS 16 for the first time in the year BRERBE BTG MELERNE 155 LA
ended 31 December 2019. EE-AFFTZA=+—HIFER

IRIEREBIEREERE 165RFES
LT o
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